
CLINTON OFFICE 
1307 E. Townsend Rd. 
Saint Johns, MI  48879-9036 
(989) 224-2195

GRATIOT OFFICE 
151 Commerce Dr. 
Ithaca, MI  48847-1627 
(989) 875-3681

MONTCALM OFFICE 
615 N. State St. 
Stanton, MI  48888-9702 
(989) 831-5237

BOARD OF HEALTH: Bruce DeLong George Bailey Michael R. Beach 

Dwight Washington, Ph.D. Chuck Murphy Adam Petersen 

WWW.MMDHD.ORG –––––––– MARK W. (MARCUS) CHEATHAM, PH.D. 
Health Officer 

JENNIFER MORSE, MD, MPH, FAAFP 
Medical Director 

MID-MICHIGAN DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT (MMDHD) 
BOARD OF HEALTH 
REGULAR MEETING 

Gratiot Office, Ithaca, Michigan 

Wednesday, June 23, 2021 
9:00 a.m. 

Board of Health and staff are invited to participate remotely due to the highly contagious COVID-
19 virus. To participate by video, access Zoom at the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84666735394?pwd=TXpMSGErRnk1dncyb2hHeFBFditTQT09 and 
use Meeting ID 846 6673 5394; Passcode 199616. To participate by phone, call 1-312-626-6799; 
then enter the Meeting ID. 

AGENDA 
We take action to protect, maintain, and improve the health of our community. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

A. AGENDA NOTES, REVIEW, AND REVISIONS:

1.

B. CONSENT ITEMS:

1. Meeting Minutes

a. Michigan Association for Local Public Health (MALPH) Board of Directors Meeting held May 10,
2021 – Included.

b. Mid-Michigan District Board of Health (BOH) Regular Meeting held May 26, 2021– Included.

c. Mid-Michigan District BOH Special Finance Committee Meeting held June 10, 2021 – Included.

d. Mid-Michigan District BOH Personnel Committee Meeting held June 16, 2021

e. Mid-Michigan District BOH Personnel Committee Meeting held June 21, 2021; Michigan Nurses
Association (MNA) Contract Negotiations – Handout.

f. Mid-Michigan District BOH Personnel Committee Meeting held June 21, 2021; Interviews for
Health Officer Position – Handout.

g. 

Page 1 of 77

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84666735394?pwd=TXpMSGErRnk1dncyb2hHeFBFditTQT09


 
 

2. Communications 
 
a.  

 
C. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

 
D. BRANCH OFFICE EMPLOYEES: 

 
E. COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 
1. Finance Committee: George Bailey, Chair 

 
a. MMDHD Expenses for May 8 through June 4, 2021 – Included. 

 
b. MMDHD’s Monthly Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expenditure Report for May 2021 – Included. 
 
c. FY 21/22 Proposed Budget and Narrative – Included. 
 
d. FY 21/22 Proposed Agency Fees – Included. 
 

1) Community Health and Education Division (CHED)  
 

2) Environmental Health (EH) Division  
 
e.  

 
2. Personnel Committee: Dwight Washington, Chair 

 
a. Michigan Nurses Association (MNA) Contract Negotiations 

 
b. Health Officer Recruitment 
 
c. Marcus Cheatham Exit Interview 
 
d.  
 

3. Program Committee: Michael Beach, Chair 
 

4. Mid-Central Coordinating Committee: Chuck Murphy 
 

F. MEDICAL DIRECTOR’S REPORT: Jennifer Morse, M.D., MPH, FAAFP – Included. 
 
1. COVID-19 – What Comes Next? 

 
2.  
 

G. HEALTH OFFICER’S REPORT: Mark W. (Marcus) Cheatham, Ph.D. 
 

1. COVID-19 Update  
 

Page 2 of 77



 
 

a.  
 

2. Michigan Premier Public Health Conference, October 27-28, 2021, Amway Grand Plaza Hotel, Grand 
Rapids 
 

3.  
 

H. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

1. Update on EH FY 20/21 Food Service Establishment Fees  
 

2. Update on Staff Remote Work  
 

3. Update on PFAS, Residential Sampling at Capital Region International Airport, DeWitt Township 
 

4.  
 
I. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
1.  

 
2. Emerging Issues 

 
a.  
 

3.  
 

J. LEGISLATIVE ACTION: 
 
1.  
 

K. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: – Included. 
 
1. Mid-Michigan District BOH Action Items, May 2021 

 
2. MMDHD Staffing Report 

 
3.  
 

L. RELATED NEWS ARTICLES AND LINKS: – https://www.mmdhd.org/2021-board-of-health/ 
1. Recreational Marijuana Tax Revenue Goes To Local Substance Abuse Services, Daily News, May 26, 

2021 
2. Montcalm Prevention Coalition Equips Youths To Live And Lead Healthy Lives, Daily News, June 5, 2021 
3. Assessing Montcalm County’s Health Needs, Resources, Daily News, June 9, 2021 
4. Bill To Aid Eateries Spurs Query, Lansing State Journal, June 14, 2021 
5.  

 
M. AGENCY NEWSLETTERS: None. 
 

Page 3 of 77

https://www.mmdhd.org/2021-board-of-health/


 

CLINTON OFFICE 
1307 E. Townsend Rd. 
Saint Johns, MI  48879-9036 
(989) 224-2195 

GRATIOT OFFICE 
151 Commerce Dr. 
Ithaca, MI  48847-1627 
(989) 875-3681 

MONTCALM OFFICE 
615 N. State St. 
Stanton, MI  48888-9702 
(989) 831-5237 

BOARD OF HEALTH: Bruce DeLong George Bailey Michael R. Beach 

 Dwight Washington, Ph.D. Chuck Murphy Adam Petersen 

 

WWW.MMDHD.ORG –––––––– MARK W. (MARCUS) CHEATHAM, PH.D. 
Health Officer 

JENNIFER MORSE, MD, MPH, FAAFP 
Medical Director 

 

Board of Health (BOH) Synopsis of Actions Needed 
June 23, 2021 Regular Meeting 

Item A. 1.  AGENDA NOTES, REVIEW, AND REVISIONS 

Motion to approve the Agenda as presented. 
 

Item B. 1. & 2.  CONSENT ITEMS (MEETING MINUTES & COMMUNICATIONS) 

Motion to accept Meeting Minutes B. 1. a. through f. and place on file. 
 

Item E. 1. a. EXPENSES FOR MAY 8 THROUGH JUNE 4, 2021 

Motion to approve payment of the Mid-Michigan District Health Department’s (MMDHD) 
Expenses for May 8, through June 4, 2021, totaling $475,755.61. 
 

Item E. 1. b. BALANCE SHEET, REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR MAY 2021 

Motion to approve and place the Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expenditure Report for May 
2021 on file. 
 

Item E. 1. c. FY 21/22 PROPOSED BUDGET AND NARRATIVE 

Motion to approve the MMDHD’s FY 21/22 Proposed Budget and Narrative. 
 

Item E. 1. d. FY 21/22 PROPOSED AGENCY FEES 

Motion to approve the FY 21/22 Proposed Agency Fees for the Community Health and 
Education Division (CHED) and the Environmental Health (EH) Division. 
 

Item F. 1. MEDICAL DIRECTOR’S REPORT: COVID-19 – WHAT COMES NEXT? 

Motion to adopt the BOH Monthly Healthy Living Recommendations for July as proposed. 

Motion to accept and place the Medical Director’s Report on file. 
 

 

Page 4 of 77



P a g e  | 1 

 

 

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION FOR LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH 

(MALPH) 

Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes 

May 10, 2021 

 

I. Call to Order 

 The meeting was called to order at 9:01am by Nick Derusha, President. 

 

II. Roll Call 

 A quorum was present. 

Jurisdictions Represented: Allegan [Randy Rapp], Barry-Eaton [Colette Scrimger], Bay 

[Joel Strasz], Benzie-Leelanau [Lisa Peacock], Berrien [Nicole Britten], Branch-Hillsdale-

St. Joseph [Rebecca Burns], Calhoun [Eric Pessell], Central Michigan [Steve Hall], 

Chippewa [Karen Senkus], Delta-Menominee [Mike Snyder], Detroit [Denise Fair], 

District 2 [Denise Bryan], District 10 [Kevin Hughes], District 4 [Denise Bryan], Genesee 

[Kayleigh Blaney], Grand Traverse [Jodi Kelly], Huron [Ann Hepfer], Ionia [Ken Bowen], 

Kent [Adam London], Lapeer [Kathy Haskins], Livingston [Dianne McCormick], Luce-

Mackinaw-Alger-Schoolcraft [Nick Derusha], Macomb [Andrew Cox], Marquette [Jerry 

Messana], Midland [Nicole, Swanton, Fred Yanoski], Mid-Michigan [Marcus Cheatham, 

Dwight Washington], Monroe [Kim Comerzan], Northwest Michigan [Lisa Peacock], 

Oakland [Leigh-Anne Stafford], Ottawa [Lisa Stefanovsky], Saginaw [Christina 

Harrington], Shiawassee [Larry Johnson], St. Clair [Annette Mercatante]Tuscola [Ann 

Hepfer], Western UP [Kate Beer]. 

     

Others Present: Administrative Officers Forum, [Derek Burton], Environmental Health 

Forum, [Andrew Cox], Nurse Administrators Forum, [Lisa Hahn], Physician’s Forum, 

[Cathy Bodnar], EGLE, [Dana DeBruyn, Ian Smith], MAC, [Dwight Washington], 

MDARD, [Sean Dunleavy, Tim Slawinski], MDHHS, [Molly Cotant, Laura de la 

Rambelje, Christine Farrell, Jason Hamblen, Jennifer McDonald, Carissa Reece, Christine 

Sanches, Martha Stanbury], MDLARA, [Larry Horvath], PAA, [Becky Bechler], 

  

 Staff: Norm Hess, Jodie Shaver 

 

III. Approve Agenda  

 Motion by M. Cheatham, support by R. Burns to approve the agenda.  Motion carried. 

 

IV. Approve Minutes of April 12, 2021 Meeting 

Motion by K. Comerzan, support by R. Burns to accept the April 12, 2021 meeting minutes. 

Motion carried. 

 

V. Public Affairs Associates Report 

B. Bechler reported legislature is moving budgets along. Senate and House have competing 

supplementals. Senate has increased PH funding by $5M in supplemental. Plan to present 

Page 5 of 77



P a g e  | 2 

 

 

budget to Governor Whitmer before July 4th break. MAC and MALPH have met with Sen. 

VanderWall regarding SB 353 / SB 354. LHDs would have a combined loss in revenue of 

about $16M.  

 

VI. Partner Updates 

 D. DeBruyn (EGLE) reported EGLE has begun lean process improvement, looking at 

financials and LHD inspection reporting. MiEHDIWS available for the upload for 

campground inspections, truck inspections, land application inspections. There will be a 

presentation on this and next steps at the MALEHA meeting. M. Gamble and A. Hernandez 

have been promoted and EGLE will be filling their vacated positions. 

 

 S. Dunleavy (MDARD) reported they have opposed SB 353 and SB 354. No other report 

at this time. 

 

 L. de la Rambelje (MDHHS) reported additional funding for COVID response will be 

coming to LHDs. This will be $10M for the current FY, for contact tracing, case 

investigation, and wrap-around services. 

 

VII.  LHD Agreement Update 

 J. Hensler presented suggested changes for FY2022. Recommended changes include 

creating new grant program for emergency amendments, reduce the number of 

amendments processed from four (4) to three (3), and change criteria for amendment 

requests. 

 

VIII.  Oral Health Program Presentation 

 C. Farrell provided an update on the new law regarding Oral Health Screening (HB 4223). 

They will be moving ahead with workgroup and if you are interested, please let C. Farrell 

or J. Shaver know. 

 

IX.  Lead Program Presentation 

 M. Stanbury and J. McDonald presented on expanding childhood blood lead testing.  

  

X. Officer Updates 

N. Derusha- President sent a written president’s report prior to the meeting. MALPH 

opposed SB 353 / 354 and are trying to work with sponsors on funding. Quarantine group 

continues to meet and MDHHS working on sending something out on this. For American 

Rescue Plan, MALPH proposed key priorities for funding: re-establishing a department of 

public health, updating IT infrastructure, and setting up revolving fund for septic systems. 

 

C. Scrimger- Secretary / Treasurer reported March financials are in the board packet. 

Motion by C. Scrimger, support by R. Burns to accept the March financials as presented. 

Motion carried. N. Hess and C. Scrimger are working on a budget amendment they hope 

to present to the full board at June meeting. 

 

Page 6 of 77



P a g e  | 3 

 

 

J. Shaver reported MPPHC has selected all sessions for 2021 conference. MALPH BOD 

meeting will be held on October 26th at 11:00am. Overnight room reservation information 

is on the MALPH website. CJS grant will hold another COVID Communication Hot Wash 

this Friday. CMU Mobile Health Central is available for LHD use. Please let MALPH 

know if you are interested. MDARD communication trainings have wrapped up with 241 

registrants for all three (3) events. County Health Rankings grant application is due May 

14, 2021. MALPH will be applying, and funds will need to be spent by December 31, 2021.  

 

N. Hess reported MHEF joint project with MPCA received twelve (12) LHD applications 

and will begin sorting through these. MALPH submitted a proposal to CDC for Academy 

of Science initiative for making data collection more consistent among LHDs. Funding 

would allow MALPH to pay all licensing fees for each LHD. MALPH applied for $225K 

grant with Kellogg Foundation to increase capacity at MALPH for member benefits and 

programming. A MALPH Message Playbook is being developed with the MDARD 

Communications grant. This should be ready by June BOD meeting. MALPH is 

welcoming a Summer Intern, Kate Lewis, who will work on communications activities. 

Region V Public Health Training Center is paying a stipend for her internship. Please let 

N. Hess know if you are interested in this program. 

  

XI. Forum Reports 

Admin Forum- D. Burton reported Admin Forum continues to focus on COVID grant 

deadlines. Annual conference will be in September in Mt. Pleasant.  

 

MALEHA- A. Cox reported EH programs have had busy permit season and continue to 

work through this while offering COVID support. MALEHA reviewing SB 353 /354 

implications. 

 

HEP- No report.   

 

MIS- No report. 

 

NAF- L. Hahn reported NAF is still struggling with attendance. They have changed the 

meeting time for May meeting, now Wednesday. Most efforts are focused on COVID and 

vaccinations. 

 

MAPPP- C. Bodnar reported MAPPP is focused on vaccine distribution. Have been 

discussing quarantine and cohorts in schools, LHD staff burnout, and statewide policies 

and guidance. 

 

XII. Public Comments / Announcements / Requests for Future Agenda Items 

K. Bowen to send guidance received from CHECC on masks and recess.  

 

XII.  Adjournment 

Meeting adjourned at 10:20am 

Page 7 of 77



 

CLINTON OFFICE 
1307 E. Townsend Rd. 
Saint Johns, MI  48879-9036 
(989) 224-2195 

GRATIOT OFFICE 
151 Commerce Dr. 
Ithaca, MI  48847-1627 
(989) 875-3681 

MONTCALM OFFICE 
615 N. State St. 
Stanton, MI  48888-9702 
(989) 831-5237 

BOARD OF HEALTH: Bruce DeLong George Bailey Michael R. Beach 

 Dwight Washington, Ph.D. Chuck Murphy Adam Petersen 

 

WWW.MMDHD.ORG –––––––– MARK W. (MARCUS) CHEATHAM, PH.D. 
Health Officer 

JENNIFER MORSE, MD, MPH, FAAFP 
Medical Director 

 

Mid-Michigan District Health Department 
BOARD OF HEALTH 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Wednesday, May 26, 2021 

9:00 a.m. 
 

Meeting held online through Zoom Video Communications, Inc. due to COVID-19. 
 

MINUTES 
We take action to protect, maintain, and improve the health of our community. 

 
 

Members Present: Bruce DeLong (Saint Johns, Michigan), Dwight Washington (Bath Township, 
Michigan), Chuck Murphy (Alma, Michigan), George Bailey (Ithaca, Michigan), 
Adam Petersen, Vice Chairperson (Greenville, Michigan), and Michael Beach 
(Carson City, Michigan) 

 
Members Absent: None 
 
Staff Present: Mark W. (Marcus) Cheatham, Ph.D., Health Officer (Stanton, Michigan); 

Melissa Selby, Director of Administrative Services (Stanton, Michigan); Cynthia 
M. Partlo, Board Secretary (Lansing, Michigan); Jennifer E. Morse, MD, MPH, 
FAAFP, Medical Director (Clare, Michigan); Liz Braddock, Director of 
Environmental Health (EH) (Bath, Michigan); and Sarah Doak, Director of 
Community Health and Education (Saint Johns, Michigan) 

 
Staff Absent: None 
 
Guests: WLNS, Craig Lyons, Lansing State Journal  
 
Bruce DeLong, Chairperson called the Regular Meeting of the Mid-Michigan District Board of Health (BOH) to 
order at 9:01 a.m. on Wednesday, May 26, 2021, online through Zoom Video Communications, Inc. due to the 
highly-contagious COVID-19 and to assure compliance with federal, state, and local health guidance and 
requirements.  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by A. Petersen. 
 

Page 8 of 77



 
 

Page 2 of 11 
 

B. DeLong asked C. Partlo, Board Secretary to call roll to determine a quorum:  
 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
C. Partlo indicated that there was a quorum. 

 
A. AGENDA NOTES, REVIEW, AND REVISIONS: 
 

M. Selby requested to add Michigan Nurses Association (MNA) Negotiations to the Agenda as item E. 2. a.  
 
Motion made by G. Bailey and seconded by D. Washington to approve the Agenda as amended. B. 
DeLong asked C. Partlo to call the roll: 
 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
Motion carried 6-0. 
 

B. CONSENT ITEMS: 
 
1. Meeting Minutes 

 
a. Michigan Association for Local Public Health (MALPH) Board of Directors Meeting held April 12, 

2021 
 

b. Mid-Michigan District Board of Health (BOH) Regular Meeting held April 28, 2021 
 

Motion made by D. Washington and seconded by C. Murphy to accept the Meeting Minutes B. 1. a. 
and b. and place on file. B. DeLong asked C. Partlo to call the roll: 

 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
Page 9 of 77



 
 

Page 3 of 11 
 

Motion carried 6-0. 
 

2. Communications – None 
 
C. PUBLIC COMMENTS: – A. Petersen clarified for the record that after he recited the pledge, he did not make 

the ending statement. C. Murphy indicated that it was him. 
 

D. BRANCH OFFICE EMPLOYEES: – None 
 
E. COMMITTEE REPORTS:  

 
1. Finance Committee – George Bailey, Chairperson 

 
a. MMDHD’s Expenses for April 10 through May 7, 2021 

 
Motion made by G. Bailey and seconded by M. Beach to approve payment of the MMDHD’s 
Expenses for April 10 through May 7, 2021 in the amount of $392,536.37. B. DeLong asked C. Partlo 
to call the roll: 

 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
Motion carried 6-0. 

 
b. MMDHD’s Monthly Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expenditure Report for April 2021 

 
Motion made by G. Bailey and seconded by M. Beach to approve and place the Balance Sheet, Revenue 
and Expenditure Report for April 2021 on file. B. DeLong asked C. Partlo to call the roll: 

 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
Motion carried 6-0. 

 
c. Schedule Time For Online Special Finance Committee Meeting, June 9, 2021 

 
G. Bailey stated that the Finance Committee scheduled their online Special Meeting for Thursday, 
June 10, 2021, at 8:30 a.m. to develop the FY 21/22 Budget and fees. 
 

Page 10 of 77



 
 

Page 4 of 11 
 

Motion made by G. Bailey and seconded by D. Washington to schedule the online Special Finance 
Committee Meeting for Thursday, June 10, 2021, at 8:30 a.m. to develop the FY 21/22 Budget and fees. 
B. DeLong asked C. Partlo to call the roll: 

 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
Motion carried 6-0. 

 
d. Contract Extension Agreement with My Community Dental Centers, Inc. (MCDC) 

 
M. Cheatham added that the Agreement extends the Medicaid dental services provided in Clinton 
County for another 10 years without any cost implications for the agency or Clinton County. 
 

Motion made by G. Bailey and seconded by M. Beach to approve the Contract Extension Agreement with 
MCDC as proposed and authorize B. DeLong to sign as Chairperson. B. DeLong asked C. Partlo to call the 
roll: 

 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
Motion carried 6-0. 

 
2. Personnel Committee – Dwight Washington, Chairperson 

 
D. Washington requested M. Cheatham schedule an exit meeting with the Personnel Committee 
before his departure. 
 
a. Michigan Nurses Association (MNA) Negotiations 

 
M. Selby mentioned that the MNA Contract was expiring soon, and she reached out to them to 
begin the negotiations process scheduling an online only meeting for June 21, 2021 at 9 a.m. She 
indicated that in the past, the Personnel Committee was present for the meeting and at other 
times they were not present. She asked the BOH their preference. M. Cheatham commented that 
he strongly encouraged the BOH Personnel Committee members to attend these negotiation 
meetings. B. DeLong agreed and recommended that at a minimum, the Personnel Committee 
Chairperson should attend. M. Selby indicated that she would forward the invitation to the 
Personnel Committee members. 

 

Page 11 of 77



 
 

Page 5 of 11 
 

3. Program Committee – Michael Beach, Chairperson – No Report. 
 

4. Mid-Central Coordinating Committee – Chuck Murphy – No Report. 
 

F. MEDICAL DIRECTOR’S REPORT: Jennifer E. Morse, MD, MPH, FAAFP 
 
1. Vitamin and Herbal Supplements to Prevent Infectious Illnesses 

 
Dr. Morse reported that vitamins and herbal supplements, used to prevent illnesses, have gained 
interest during the COVID-19 pandemic. She said that taking large doses of supplements has not 
shown to be significantly beneficial in reducing risk of illness. She reported that taking zinc has shown 
to provide benefits in shortening the length of the common cold by about 50%; however, zinc has side 
effects. Additionally, she recommended not using zinc nasal sprays as damage to one’s sense of smell 
or permanent loss can result. Dr. Morse added that zinc has not shown to have any benefit of 
shortening or preventing COVID-19. 
 
Additionally, she said that dietary supplements are not required to prove safety, quality, or 
effectiveness. Dr. Morse said that dietary supplements have very little regulation on their 
manufacturing. She said due to variations in different commercially available products (plant species or 
parts used; how and when the plant was harvested, stored, and processed; chemicals used in the 
extraction process; purity of ingredients; etc.), it is difficult to determine the safety and effectiveness 
of supplements. In summary, she recommended that eating a well-balanced diet was the best way to 
support a healthy immune system.  
 
Dr. Morse explained the function of the United States Pharmacopeial Convention (USP) and 
recommended looking for the seal when purchasing supplements to ensure that the product 
contained the ingredients listed on the label, that the potency and amount declared was accurate, that 
the supplement does not contain harmful levels of specified contaminants and will break down and 
release into the body within the specified amount of time, and the product has been made using safe, 
sanitary, and well-controlled manufacturing practices according to FDA and USP guidelines. 
 
D. Washington asked Dr. Morse about ticks indicating that he thought that they were very active this 
year. He asked if there was a way to track tick activity and tick-borne diseases. Dr. Morse indicated the 
State has a tick tracker to provide that information, although disease reporting may be delayed. She 
provided the link below to the BOH. 
http://www.mcgi.state.mi.us/midiseasemapper/?Category=Human&SpeciesGroup=Mammal&Species
=All&Condition=Lyme%20Disease&Status=case&Year=2016&By=County&Acquired=Local 
 
C. Murphy asked if there was any data on COVID-19 vaccinated individuals getting COVID. Dr. Morse 
reported that the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) has a web page tracking that data 
and the State website also provided data. She reported that in Michigan, over 5,000 fully vaccinated 
individuals have been infected with COVID-19 and tended to have mild disease. She said that most 
individuals are asymptomatic, and their disease was found during routine testing at a hospital, such as 
prior to a procedure or surgery. M. Cheatham added that the State data showed that in our district 
there have been 125 breakthrough cases out of 70,000 vaccinated individuals. 
 
Dr. Morse’s BOH Monthly Healthy Living Recommendations for June are: 
 

Page 12 of 77

http://www.mcgi.state.mi.us/midiseasemapper/?Category=Human&SpeciesGroup=Mammal&Species=All&Condition=Lyme%20Disease&Status=case&Year=2016&By=County&Acquired=Local
http://www.mcgi.state.mi.us/midiseasemapper/?Category=Human&SpeciesGroup=Mammal&Species=All&Condition=Lyme%20Disease&Status=case&Year=2016&By=County&Acquired=Local


 
 

Page 6 of 11 
 

1. Following a balanced diet is the best way to get the nutrients you need for a healthy immune 
system. For more information see https://www.hsph.harvard.edu/nutritionsource/healthy-eating-
plate/  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. If you are concerned you are not getting a well-balanced diet, consider taking a multivitamin once 
a day. High doses of any vitamin or mineral have not been consistently found to be very helpful. 
Verified multivitamins can be found here https://www.quality-supplements.org/verified-
products/verified-products-listings#list2; anyone other than a pregnant or menstruating woman 
should not take a vitamin with extra iron. 

 
3. If you choose to take vitamins or supplements, consult with your doctor or pharmacist. Look for 

those verified by the United States Pharmacopeial Convention (USP), an independent, scientific 
nonprofit organization (see image of seal below).  This verification indicates the product contains 
the ingredients listed on the label, in the declared potency and amount, does not contain harmful 
levels of specified contaminants, will break down and release into the body within specified 
amount of time, and has been made using safe, sanitary, and well-controlled manufacturing 
practices according to FDA and USP guidelines. For more information see https://www.quality-
supplements.org/. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Motion made by D. Washington and seconded by C. Murphy to approve the Medical Director’s Report 
and recommendations for June as presented and place them on file. B. DeLong asked C. Partlo to call the 
roll: 

 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
Motion carried 6-0. 

 

Page 13 of 77

https://www.hsph.harvard.edu/nutritionsource/healthy-eating-plate/
https://www.hsph.harvard.edu/nutritionsource/healthy-eating-plate/
https://www.quality-supplements.org/verified-products/verified-products-listings#list2
https://www.quality-supplements.org/verified-products/verified-products-listings#list2
https://www.quality-supplements.org/
https://www.quality-supplements.org/


 
 

Page 7 of 11 
 

G. HEALTH OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
1. COVID-19 Update 

 
M. Cheatham provided an update regarding COVID-19 stating that agency’s ability to contact people 
with COVID has improved after the recent surge. The second report focused on younger people under 
40 years of age with COVID-19 (highest cases recently seen). 
 
M. Cheatham reported the status of COVID-19 within the district.  
 

 Clinton County Gratiot County Montcalm County 

Positive Cases per day 5 5 10 

Deaths per week 1 2 3 

Positivity Rate 4% 7% 9% 

Daily Tests 90 100 160 

 
He summarized that the data for all counties should improve, but at an uneven rate. M. Cheatham 
reported that people were still being vaccinated in the district at the rate of 2,000 to 3,000 people per 
week. He indicated that the rates of coverage were increasing about 1% across the district per week, 
which was slower than he would like. 
 

2. Staff Survey on Remote Work 
 

M. Cheatham said that based on the data reported above, if the BOH wanted to return to in-person 
meetings they could do so safely in compliance with MIOSHA rules. M. Cheatham spoke about existing 
emergency declarations stating his concern that COVID-19 tended to be worse in rural parts of the 
district. He said the advantages of continuing emergency declarations allowed discretion at the local 
level to delay returning to in-person meetings until comfortable doing so. D. Washington indicated 
that he was very happy to hear M. Cheatham’s report; however, several Clinton County events just 
won’t be happening this year due to the inability for advanced planning. 
 
G. Bailey asked M. Cheatham if there was a need to continue emergency declarations after the State 
opens everything up July 1st. M. Cheatham replied that emergency declarations would not be needed 
after July 1, 2021. He cautioned that looking at the unevenness of COVID-19 cases among the district 
and that cases in rural areas were declining at a slower rate, he advised it would be prudent to allow 
the option of in-person meetings for the next few months in areas with community spread. G. Bailey 
asked for clarification that if the Gratiot County Board rescinded its emergency declaration before its 
expiration of December 31, 2021, then meetings would have to be conducted in-person. M. Cheatham 
agreed. 
 
M. Cheatham indicated that on Monday the MIOSHA announced new rules, although those rules do 
not apply to vaccinated employees.  He mentioned that vaccinated employees can return to work 
without masking. He said that MMDHD conducted a staff survey regarding returning to work and 
remote working. He reported that staff feelings were diverse. He explained that the survey results 
were given to the Quality Vision Action Team (QVAT) for them to study and make recommendations. 
After the QVAT meeting May 28th, M. Cheatham said that an announcement would be made to staff 
about a schedule of when they will return to the office. He reviewed the survey results with the BOH 
reporting that a large percentage of the staff were interested in some form of remote work.  
 

Page 14 of 77



 
 

Page 8 of 11 
 

C. Murphy asked for clarification that unvaccinated people must wear a mask in the office and socially 
distance. M. Cheatham said that was the current MIOSHA requirements for employers and said that an 
employer could be fined if found not in compliance. D. Washington said that he was very proud of M. 
Cheatham’s leadership and the health department’s performance. He asked if there were plans to 
recognize staff. M. Cheatham indicated that staff recognition would be discussed at QVAT. He said that 
staff were exhausted and have lots of accumulated leave time. He said management was encouraging 
all staff to take their vacation time this summer. 

 
H. OLD BUSINESS:  

 
1. EH FY 20/21 Food Service Establishment Fees 

 
M. Cheatham provided an overview of the FY 20/21 food service establishment fees and Senate Bills 
353 and 354 proposing to waive fees for the entire food industry. He said that the BOH asked staff to 
find out the status of the bills and discuss options with the County Administrators if the bills were to 
pass. M. Cheatham reported that the Michigan Association for Local Public Health (MALPH) has talked 
with the sponsor of the bill, Senator VanderWall. The Senator was very clear that no replacement 
revenue would be appended to these bills, but he expected American Rescue Plan funds from counties 
would be used to cover the costs. M. Cheatham mentioned that those funds are county funds not 
Senate or House dollars. M. Cheatham said that Senator Outman was asked about the chances of the 
legislation passing. He indicated that the bills would most likely pass in the Senate, but he could not 
speculate the outcome in the House. M. Cheatham said that the County Administrators agreed that 
whatever the decision, it needed to be supported by all three counties districtwide. Additionally, they 
felt that the use of American Rescue Plan funding for this purpose was appropriate and welcomed 
additional suggestions where those funds could be used to benefit residents of the district to recover 
from COVID-19. M. Cheatham summarized that the County Administrators recommended: 
 
1. Wait and see if the bills pass; 
2. If the bills pass, MMDHD would invoice the counties for lost revenue based on the FY 20/21 license 

fees; and  
3. MMDHD would cut the checks to reimburse food service establishments. 
 
M. Cheatham said for this recommendation to move forward, it would require action from the Boards 
of Commissioners. B. DeLong, M. Beach, and C. Murphy indicated their support as proposed. B. DeLong 
asked if there was a current update on the passing of the bills. M. Cheatham indicated that no further 
movement was noted as of Monday, May 24, 2021. C. Murphy asked if the actions would only be taken 
if the bills became law. M. Cheatham explained that the Counties could decide to waive the fees 
whether the bills pass or not.  

 
Motion made by C. Murphy and seconded by M. Beach to authorize M. Selby to invoice Clinton, 
Gratiot, and Montcalm Counties for the loss of FY 20/21 food service establishment licensing fees if 
Senate Bills 353 and 354 are approved. B. DeLong requested C. Partlo to call the roll: 

Page 15 of 77



 
 

Page 9 of 11 
 

 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
Motion carried 6-0. 

 
Motion made by C. Murphy and seconded by M. Beach to reimburse food service establishments 
for their FY 20/21 licensing fees, using county American Rescue Plan funding, if Senate Bills 353 
and 354 are approved. 
 
G. Bailey mentioned that with the above motions, the BOH was making decisions for the County 
Boards of Commissioners. M. Beach added that the motions could be changed to a 
recommendation. A. Petersen said that the BOH was acting as if the County Boards of 
Commissioners had already approved the recommendation. G. Bailey summarized that he believed 
the BOH supported the recommendation; however, Commissioners must take the 
recommendation back to their County Boards of Commissioners for consideration. 
 

Motion made by C. Murphy and seconded by M. Beach to rescind the two above motions. B. DeLong 
requested C. Partlo to call the roll: 

 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
Motion carried 6-0. 

 
Motion made by C. Murphy and seconded by M. Beach to recommend that the County Boards of 
Commissioners use county American Rescue Plan funding to reimburse MMDHD for the loss of 
revenue for their FY 20/21 licensing fees if Senate Bills 353 and 354 pass in the House and Senate 
and to authorize M. Cheatham to send the amounts of lost revenue for MMDHD to the County 
Boards of Commissioners. B. DeLong asked C. Partlo to call the roll: 

 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
Page 16 of 77



 
 

Page 10 of 11 
 

Motion carried 6-0. 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1. Bathing Beach Water Sampling Grant 
 

L. Braddock said that the agency recently received a grant award to monitor bathing beach water 
sampling for 10 weeks during the summer. If E. coli is found, the second part of the grant allows 
tracking to determine the source of the E. coli and testing would be done by Michigan State University 
to determine the origin of the DNA (human or bovine). The agency’s EH Health Educator would be 
working on the grant in conjunction with a paid intern. L. Braddock indicated that updates would be 
presented to the BOH at a future meeting.  
 

2. Health Officer Recruitment/Transition Process 
 

M. Cheatham stated that although the recruitment process for a new Health Officer was to be led by 
the BOH Personnel Committee, Administrative Staff provided recommendations for the different 
issues that needed to be addressed during the process.  He reported that the position was posted, and 
three applications had been received to date with the posting closing on June 1, 2021. M. Cheatham 
recommended a diverse interview committee including the BOH Personnel Committee, a community 
representative, a member of Administrative Staff which could be M. Selby, and a Health Officer from 
the Central Michigan District Health Department (CMDHD) or District Health Department (DHD) #10. 
He reviewed the timeline indicating that an offer could potentially be made by the end of June. B. 
DeLong indicated that he received a letter from the Michigan Department of Health and Human 
Services (MDHHS) regarding their staff assisting in the interview process. G. Bailey added that it was a 
well thought out plan and encouraged the Personnel Committee to be selective in their choice and 
continue to advertise if not satisfied with the applicants. 
 
A. Petersen asked if there would be an interim health officer. M. Cheatham said that he was very 
confident in the Administrative Team, and the BOH could appoint an interim Health Officer.  
 
Motion made by G. Bailey and seconded by M. Beach to approve the proposed hiring committee and 
timeline to recruit a new health officer. B. DeLong asked C. Partlo to call the roll: 

 

Board Member Yes No 

G. Bailey ✓  

M. Beach ✓  

C. Murphy ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

D. Washington ✓  

B. DeLong ✓  

 
Motion carried 6-0. 

 

Page 17 of 77



 
 

Page 11 of 11 
 

3. Emerging Issues 
 
b. PFAS, Residential Sampling at Capital Region International Airport, DeWitt Township 
 

L. Braddock explained that the agency was notified that 10 residential sites were identified near 
the Capital Region International Airport to be sampled for PFAS. She indicated if PFAS results came 
back elevated, MMDHD would work with MDHHS to provide filters to residents impacted or 
provide long-term water solutions for them. Additionally, L. Braddock mentioned that there was 
the potential for 40 additional homes to be sampled. 
 

J. LEGISLATIVE ACTION: None 
 

K. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 

1. Mid-Michigan District BOH Action Items, April 2021 
 

2. MMDHD Staffing Report 
 
L. RELATED NEWS ARTICLES AND LINKS: – https://www.mmdhd.org/2021-board-of-health/ 

1. B.1.617 COVID-19 Variant Found In Clinton County, Lansing State Journal, May 1, 2021 
2. COVID-19 Appointments Advertisement, Daily News, May 1, 2021 
3. Multiple COVID-19 Variants Showing Up Around The Area, Daily News, May 4, 2021 
4. Breckenridge HS Athletes Part Of Two K-12 Outbreaks, Morning Sun, May 6, 2021 
5. Local Health Department Shortens Quarantine, Daily News, May 6, 2021 
6. CC-C School Board Debates Quarantine And Contract Tracing Rules, Daily News, May 12, 2021 
7. Youths 12 And Older Can Now Receive COVID-19 Vaccine From Pfizer Locally, Daily News, May 14, 

2021 
 

M. AGENCY NEWSLETTERS:  None 
 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 10:29 a.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Cynthia M. Partlo, Board Secretary  
For Bruce DeLong, Chairperson 
Mid-Michigan District Board of Health 

Page 18 of 77

https://www.mmdhd.org/2021-board-of-health/


 

CLINTON OFFICE 
1307 E. Townsend Rd. 
Saint Johns, MI  48879-9036 
(989) 224-2195 

GRATIOT OFFICE 
151 Commerce Dr. 
Ithaca, MI  48847-1627 
(989) 875-3681 

MONTCALM OFFICE 
615 N. State St. 
Stanton, MI  48888-9702 
(989) 831-5237 

BOARD OF HEALTH: Bruce DeLong George Bailey Michael R. Beach 

 Dwight Washington, Ph.D. Chuck Murphy Adam Petersen 

 

WWW.MMDHD.ORG –––––––– MARK W. (MARCUS) CHEATHAM, PH.D. 
Health Officer 

JENNIFER MORSE, MD, MPH, FAAFP 
Medical Director 

 

Mid-Michigan District Health Department (MMDHD) 
BOARD OF HEALTH 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Thursday, June 10, 2021, 8:30 a.m. 
 

Meeting held online through Zoom Video Communications, Inc. due to COVID-19. 
 
 

MINUTES 
We take action to protect, maintain, and improve the health of our community. 

 
Members Present: Bruce DeLong (Saint Johns, Michigan), Adam Petersen (Greenville, Michigan), and 

George Bailey (Chair) (Ithaca, Michigan)  
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Staff Present: Mark W. (Marcus) Cheatham, Ph.D., Health Officer (Stanton, Michigan); Melissa Selby, 

Director of Administrative Services (Stanton, Michigan); Cindy Partlo, Board Secretary 
(Lansing, Michigan); and Sarah Doak, Director of Community Health and Education 
(Saint Johns, Michigan) 

 
Staff Absent: None 
 
 Guests:   None 
 
G. Bailey, Chairperson called the Finance Committee Meeting of the Mid-Michigan District Board of Health 
(BOH) to order at 8:30 a.m., on Thursday, June 10, 2021. The meeting was held remotely for the public 
considering the highly-contagious COVID-19 and to assure compliance with federal, state, and local health 
guidance and requirements. 
 
Motion made by B. DeLong and seconded by A. Petersen to approve the Agenda as presented. Motion 
carried. G. Bailey requested M. Selby to call the roll: 
 

Board Member Yes No 

B. DeLong ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

G. Bailey ✓  

 
Motion carried 3-0. 
 

Page 19 of 77



 
 
A. FY 21/22 Proposed Draft Budget and Narrative 
 

M. Cheatham discussed some of the assumptions regarding the upcoming budget year.  These 
assumptions included State funding and COVID funding, the economy, and possible partnerships in the 
upcoming year.  
 
Motion made by A. Petersen to recommend the BOH approve the FY 21/22 Proposed Budget and 
Narrative. Motion seconded by B. DeLong.  G. Bailey requested M. Selby to call the roll: 

  

Board Member Yes No 

B. DeLong ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

G. Bailey ✓  

 
Motion carried 3-0. 
 

B. FY 21/22 Proposed Agency Fees 
 

M. Selby stated that the Community Health and Education fees remained the same as the prior year.  
Environmental Health fees had a 1% increase with the exclusion of the Food Fees that are highlighted 
in yellow.  A. Peterson stated he appreciated that fees had not been raised on restaurants.   

 
Motion made by B. DeLong to recommend the BOH approve the FY 21/22 Proposed Agency Fees for 
the Community Health & Education and Environmental Health Divisions. Motion seconded by A. 
Peterson.  G. Bailey requested M. Selby to call the roll: 
 

Board Member Yes No 

B. DeLong ✓  

A. Petersen ✓  

G. Bailey ✓  

 
Motion carried 3-0. 
 
 

There being no further business to come before the Finance Committee, the meeting adjourned at 8:55 a.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Melissa Selby 
Acting Board Secretary for 
George Bailey, Finance Committee Chair  
Mid-Michigan District Board of Health 
 
 

Page 20 of 77



 

CLINTON OFFICE 
1307 E. Townsend Rd. 
Saint Johns, MI  48879-9036 
(989) 224-2195 

GRATIOT OFFICE 
151 Commerce Dr. 
Ithaca, MI  48847-1627 
(989) 875-3681 

MONTCALM OFFICE 
615 N. State St. 
Stanton, MI  48888-9702 
(989) 831-5237 

BOARD OF HEALTH: Bruce DeLong George Bailey Michael R. Beach 

 Dwight Washington, Ph.D. Chuck Murphy Adam Petersen 

 

WWW.MMDHD.ORG –––––––– MARK W. (MARCUS) CHEATHAM, PH.D. 
Health Officer 

JENNIFER MORSE, MD, MPH, FAAFP 
Medical Director 

 

MID-MICHIGAN DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT (MMDHD) 
BOARD OF HEALTH 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Meeting held online through Zoom Communications, Inc. due to COVID-19. 
 

Wednesday, June 16, 2021, 10:00 a.m. 
 

MINUTES 
We take action to protect, maintain, and improve the health of our community. 

 
Members Present: Dwight Washington (Chair), Adam Petersen, and Chuck Murphy  
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Staff Present: Melissa Selby, Director of Administrative Services 
 
Staff Absent: Mark W. (Marcus) Cheatham, Ph.D., Health Officer 
 
Guests: Justin Babbitt, Michigan Nurses Association Representative; Jenniffer Efaw 
 
D. Washington, Chairperson called the Personnel Committee Meeting of the Mid-Michigan District Board of 
Health (BOH) to order at 10:00 a.m., on Wednesday, June 16, 2021. The meeting was held virtually through 
Zoom considering the highly-contagious COVID-19 and to assure compliance with federal, state, and local 
Emergency Declarations in Clinton, Gratiot, and Montcalm Counties. 
 
Motion made by A. Petersen and seconded by C. Murphy to approve the Agenda as presented. Motion 
carried. 
 
A. Public Comment – None. 
 
B. Review of Candidates for the Health Officer Position 

 
D. Washington discussed the purpose of the meeting was to decide the process for conducting 
interviews and to set dates for that process.  A. Peterson stated that the meeting allowed transparency 
in the selection process.  There was discussion about conducting short 10-15 minute introductory 
interviews with each candidate and then moving forward to a full interview either Friday 6/18/21 or 
Monday 6/21/21.  After checking calendar availability for full interviews, it was determined that they 
would be held either Friday 6/25/21 or Monday 6/28/21 in the Gratiot Branch Office in Ithaca.  Melissa 
will determine if those dates work with the interview panel.  
 
Motion made by A. Peterson and seconded by C. Murphy to set up introductory interviews with the 
candidates via zoom on June 21, 2021 at 2 p.m.  Motion carried. 
 

Page 21 of 77



 
 
There being no further business to come before the Personnel Committee, the meeting adjourned at 10:52 
a.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Melissa Selby 
Acting Board Secretary for 
Dwight Washington, Personnel Committee Chair  
Mid-Michigan District Board of Health 
 
 

Page 22 of 77



EV 1952 5/21/2021 214,323.36$       
 

EV 1953 6/4/2021 261,432.25$       

TOTAL 475,755.61$   

MONTHLY EXPENSES FOR
May 8, 2021 - June 4, 2021

Page 23 of 77



EV # 1952  5/21/2021

Payables

Direct Deposit  EFT0006 Washington, Dwight
106712

Check # to  Acumatica Checks
106748 35,653.62$      

Payroll

AFLAC Employee Deduction Apr-21 525.20$           
Ameriprise NBS 85.00$             
MERS 457 1,520.00$        
MERS Defined Benefit - Employee 4,462.44$        
Nationwide 1,850.00$        
EFT Payroll Tax

Federal 38,084.57$      
State 5,873.07$        

Direct Deposit Payroll 116,929.94$    
Direct Deposit HSA 9,222.86$        

Fees

TCF e-Banking fee May-21 116.66$           

TOTAL 214,323.36$  

Page 24 of 77



Page 2 of 11

AP Payment Register

Account Description

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106712 Closed 5/19/2021 ALLE01 ALLEY T 0.00 253.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 49894 EMPLOYEE TSHIRTS 253.00 USD 0.00 253.00

Document Total: 253.00

Payment Method Total: 253.00

Cash Account Total: 253.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106713 Closed 5/19/2021 ARRO01 ARROW SWIFT 0.00 320.16

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 93476 COVID SIGNS 320.16 USD 0.00 320.16

Document Total: 320.16

Payment Method Total: 320.16

Cash Account Total: 320.16

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106714 Closed 5/19/2021 BROM01 BROMBERG & ASSOCIATES 0.00 96.48

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 16431 TRANSLATION REGISTRATION TO SPANISH 96.48 USD 0.00 96.48

Document Total: 96.48

Payment Method Total: 96.48

Cash Account Total: 96.48

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106715 Closed 5/19/2021 CAPI01 CAPITAL AREA UNITED WAY 0.00 30.84

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL MAY 2021 EMPLOYEE DONATIONS 30.84 USD 0.00 30.84

Document Total: 30.84

Payment Method Total: 30.84

Cash Account Total: 30.84Page 25 of 77



Page 3 of 11
CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106716 Closed 5/19/2021 CASA01 CASAIR 0.00 850.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 657113 MAY INTERNET, FIBER, LIST SERVICE ACCESS 850.00 USD 0.00 850.00

Document Total: 850.00

Payment Method Total: 850.00

Cash Account Total: 850.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106717 Closed 5/19/2021 CDWG01 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. 0.00 1,696.13

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL GR2100408 4/9/21 REMOTE RECONFIGUATION OF MBO-RTR-1 VOICE GATEWAY396.00 USD 0.00 396.00

BILL C668071 EPSON SCANNER 759.98 USD 0.00 759.98

BILL C111352 LOGITECH BLUETOOTH MOUSE; INVOICE DATED 4/21/21 540.15 USD 0.00 540.15

Document Total: 1,696.13

Payment Method Total: 1,696.13

Cash Account Total: 1,696.13

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106718 Closed 5/19/2021 CLIN01 CLINTON COUNTY ADMINISTRATION/ACCOUNTING 0.00 1,966.67

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL AC-2021-014 JUNE DENTAL RENT 1,966.67 USD 0.00 1,966.67

Document Total: 1,966.67

Payment Method Total: 1,966.67

Cash Account Total: 1,966.67

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106719 Closed 5/19/2021 COHL01 COHL, STOKER & TOSKEY, P.C. 0.00 253.50

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 52329 MARCH LEGAL 253.50 USD 0.00 253.50

Document Total: 253.50

Payment Method Total: 253.50

Cash Account Total: 253.50

Page 26 of 77



Page 4 of 11
CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106720 Closed 5/19/2021 COMM01 COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH ASSOCIATION 0.00 2,600.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL FY2021 FY2021 PLEDGE 2,600.00 USD 0.00 2,600.00

Document Total: 2,600.00

Payment Method Total: 2,600.00

Cash Account Total: 2,600.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106721 Closed 5/19/2021 COVE01 COVENANT MEDICAL CENTER 0.00 126.20

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 16532217 LABS 41.68 USD 0.00 41.68

BILL 16532244 LABS 42.84 USD 0.00 42.84

BILL 16532189 LABS 41.68 USD 0.00 41.68

Document Total: 126.20

Payment Method Total: 126.20

Cash Account Total: 126.20

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106722 Closed 5/19/2021 DELT01 DELTA DENTAL OF MICHIGAN 0.00 4,543.38

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL RIS0003473178 JUNE DENTAL INSURANCE 4,543.38 USD 0.00 4,543.38

Document Total: 4,543.38

Payment Method Total: 4,543.38

Cash Account Total: 4,543.38

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106723 Closed 5/19/2021 FIRS01 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA 0.00 3,579.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 05032021 APRIL UPS INVOICES, PAGER 102.72 USD 0.00 102.72

BILL 05032021-1 FP SNAPCHAT, JOTFORM, GOTOMEETING 507.56 USD 0.00 507.56

BILL 05032021-2 INDEED, STAMPS.COM, DFG GIFT CARDS, COVID SUPPLY, 2,968.72 USD 0.00 2,968.72

Document Total: 3,579.00

Payment Method Total: 3,579.00

Cash Account Total: 3,579.00
Page 27 of 77



Page 5 of 11

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106724 Closed 5/19/2021 GLAXO1 GLAXO SMITH KLINE 0.00 368.71

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 8253434165 BOOSTRIX 368.71 USD 0.00 368.71

Document Total: 368.71

Payment Method Total: 368.71

Cash Account Total: 368.71

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106725 Closed 5/19/2021 GREE01 GREENVILLE DAILY NEWS 0.00 332.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 301265489 301265490 5/1/21 COVID ADVERTISING 332.00 USD 0.00 332.00

Document Total: 332.00

Payment Method Total: 332.00

Cash Account Total: 332.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106726 Closed 5/19/2021 INSP01 INSPIRATION STUDIO DESIGNS 0.00 1,262.50

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 2602 CLINTON DRUG FREE RESOURCE DIRECTORY 62.50 USD 0.00 62.50

BILL 2607 FAMILY PLANNING SOCIAL MEDIA COMPAIGN 1,200.00 USD 0.00 1,200.00

Document Total: 1,262.50

Payment Method Total: 1,262.50

Cash Account Total: 1,262.50

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106727 Closed 5/19/2021 KENT01 KENT COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 0.00 1,798.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL EH033121-555555 MARCH WATER LABS 1,798.00 USD 0.00 1,798.00

Document Total: 1,798.00

Payment Method Total: 1,798.00

Cash Account Total: 1,798.00

Page 28 of 77



Page 6 of 11
CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106728 Closed 5/19/2021 LAKE02 LAKEVIEW AREA NEWS 0.00 400.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 8779 4/29/21 COVID CLINIC ADVERTISING 200.00 USD 0.00 200.00

BILL 8780 5/6 ADVERTISING COVID CLINICS 200.00 USD 0.00 200.00

Document Total: 400.00

Payment Method Total: 400.00

Cash Account Total: 400.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106729 Closed 5/19/2021 LESL01 LESLIE C MCLEAN VFW POST 1454 0.00 419.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 05122021 REFUND PERMIT 419.00 USD 0.00 419.00

Document Total: 419.00

Payment Method Total: 419.00

Cash Account Total: 419.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106730 Closed 5/19/2021 LINC01 LINCOLN FINANCIAL GROUP 0.00 2,823.08

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL JUNE 2021 JUNE LIFE/LTD/AD&D 2,823.08 USD 0.00 2,823.08

Document Total: 2,823.08

Payment Method Total: 2,823.08

Cash Account Total: 2,823.08

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106731 Closed 5/19/2021 MCKE01 MCKESSON MEDICAL 0.00 906.59

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 18144503 GLOVES, NEEDLES, SHARP CONTAINERS, COTTON BALLS 906.59 USD 0.00 906.59

Document Total: 906.59

Payment Method Total: 906.59

Cash Account Total: 906.59

Page 29 of 77



Page 7 of 11
CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106732 Closed 5/19/2021 MERI01 MERIDIAN 0.00 28.68

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 1801805536 INSURANCE REFUNDS 28.68 USD 0.00 28.68

Document Total: 28.68

Payment Method Total: 28.68

Cash Account Total: 28.68

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106733 Closed 5/19/2021 MERR02 MERRILL CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH 0.00 40.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 05042021 BARBARA REIST MEMORIAL 40.00 USD 0.00 40.00

Document Total: 40.00

Payment Method Total: 40.00

Cash Account Total: 40.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106734 Closed 5/19/2021 MICH01 MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION COUNTIES 0.00 75.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL m2162 HEALTH OFFICER JOB POSTING 75.00 USD 0.00 75.00

Document Total: 75.00

Payment Method Total: 75.00

Cash Account Total: 75.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106735 Closed 5/19/2021 NATI01 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY & CITY HEALTH OFFICE0.00 875.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 270791 JULY 2021 - JUNE 2022 DUES 875.00 USD 0.00 875.00

Document Total: 875.00

Payment Method Total: 875.00

Cash Account Total: 875.00

Page 30 of 77



Page 8 of 11
CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106736 Closed 5/19/2021 ODYS01 ODYSSEY SOFTWARE 0.00 750.50

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL I0016949 MARCH 2021 KRONOS 79 EMPLOYEES 750.50 USD 0.00 750.50

Document Total: 750.50

Payment Method Total: 750.50

Cash Account Total: 750.50

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106737 Closed 5/19/2021 OUTF01 OUTFRONT MEDIA 0.00 2,000.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 7399AL ADVERTISING 5/17-9/5 2,000.00 USD 0.00 2,000.00

Document Total: 2,000.00

Payment Method Total: 2,000.00

Cash Account Total: 2,000.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106738 Closed 5/19/2021 PETT01 PETTY CASH FUND - ADMINISTRATION 0.00 62.44

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 3/30-5/3 NEW EMPLOYEE LUNCH, IT CABLES, WATER 62.44 USD 0.00 62.44

Document Total: 62.44

Payment Method Total: 62.44

Cash Account Total: 62.44

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106739 Closed 5/19/2021 RICO01 RICOH USA INC 0.00 810.50

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 5061925364 APRIL COPIERS 810.50 USD 0.00 810.50

Document Total: 810.50

Payment Method Total: 810.50

Cash Account Total: 810.50

Page 31 of 77



Page 9 of 11
CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106740 Closed 5/19/2021 STAP01 STAPLES 0.00 380.86

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 3475159727 10 BLACK INK 239.50 USD 0.00 239.50

BILL 3475522800 4 BLACK INK 141.36 USD 0.00 141.36

Document Total: 380.86

Payment Method Total: 380.86

Cash Account Total: 380.86

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106741 Closed 5/19/2021 STAT01 STATCOURIER 0.00 1,989.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 1019-2389 APRIL LAB CURRIER 1,989.00 USD 0.00 1,989.00

Document Total: 1,989.00

Payment Method Total: 1,989.00

Cash Account Total: 1,989.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106742 Closed 5/19/2021 STAT04 STATE OF MICHIGAN-LAB 0.00 11.50

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 20210326-18 LAB 11.50 USD 0.00 11.50

Document Total: 11.50

Payment Method Total: 11.50

Cash Account Total: 11.50

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106743 Closed 5/19/2021 TABO01 TABOR ANDREA 0.00 100.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 04302021 4/26-4/30 CONTRACTUAL 60.00 USD 0.00 60.00

BILL 05082021 5/4-5/6 CONTRACTUAL 40.00 USD 0.00 40.00

Document Total: 100.00

Payment Method Total: 100.00

Cash Account Total: 100.00

Page 32 of 77



Page 10 of 11
CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106744 Closed 5/19/2021 UNIT02 UNITED WAY OF GRATIOT COUNTY 0.00 112.84

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL MAY 2021 EMPLOYEE DONATIONS 112.84 USD 0.00 112.84

Document Total: 112.84

Payment Method Total: 112.84

Cash Account Total: 112.84

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106745 Closed 5/19/2021 UNIT03 UNITED WAY OF MONTCALM COUNTY 0.00 64.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL MAY 2021 EMPLOYEE DONATIONS 64.00 USD 0.00 64.00

Document Total: 64.00

Payment Method Total: 64.00

Cash Account Total: 64.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106746 Closed 5/19/2021 WENS01 WENSLEY KEVIN 0.00 382.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 05042021 REFUND VACANT LAND PERMITS 382.00 USD 0.00 382.00

Document Total: 382.00

Payment Method Total: 382.00

Cash Account Total: 382.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106747 Closed 5/19/2021 WGLM01 WGLM AM-FM 0.00 325.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 21040117 COVID ADVERTISING 325.00 USD 0.00 325.00

Document Total: 325.00

Payment Method Total: 325.00

Cash Account Total: 325.00

Page 33 of 77



Page 11 of 11
CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106748 Closed 5/19/2021 WINN01 WINN TELECOM 0.00 2,986.06

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL MAY 2021 INTERNET, LONG DISTANCE, FAXES 2,986.06 USD 0.00 2,986.06

Document Total: 2,986.06

Payment Method Total: 2,986.06

Cash Account Total: 2,986.06

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK EFT0000006 Closed 5/21/2021 WASH01 WASHINGTON DWIGHT 0.00 35.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL APRIL 2021 APRIL PER DIEM 35.00 USD 0.00 35.00

Document Total: 35.00

Payment Method Total: 35.00

Cash Account Total: 35.00

Doc. Type Count Amount Paid (USD)

Check 38 35,653.62

Prepayment 0 0.00

Refund 0 0.00

Void Check 0 0.00

Company Total: 38 35,653.62

Page 34 of 77



EV # 1953  6/4/2021

Payables

Direct Deposit  
106749

Check # to  Acumatica Checks
106775 53,081.65$     

Payroll

AFLAC Employee Deduction  525.20$          
Ameriprise NBS 85.00$            
MERS 457 1,520.00$       
MERS Defined Benefit - Employee 4,297.30$       
Nationwide 1,850.00$       
EFT Payroll Tax

Federal 35,978.93$     
State 5,569.38$       

MERS Defined Benefit - Employer May-21 36,410.05$     
Direct Deposit Payroll 112,755.00$    
Direct Deposit HSA 9,359.74$       

TOTAL 261,432.25$ 

Page 35 of 77



Page 2 of 8

AP Payment Register

Account Description

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106749 Closed 6/4/2021 BROM01 BROMBERG & ASSOCIATES 0.00 77.48

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 16604 APRIL TRANSLATION SERVICES 77.48 USD 0.00 77.48

Document Total: 77.48

Payment Method Total: 77.48

Cash Account Total: 77.48

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106750 Closed 6/4/2021 BROO01 BROOKSIDE GOLF COURSE 0.00 138.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 003293 REFUND OVERPAYMENT 138.00 USD 0.00 138.00

Document Total: 138.00

Payment Method Total: 138.00

Cash Account Total: 138.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106751 Closed 6/4/2021 CASA01 CASAIR 0.00 850.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 663779 JUNE WIRELESS INTERNET, LIST SERVICE ACCESS 850.00 USD 0.00 850.00

Document Total: 850.00

Payment Method Total: 850.00

Cash Account Total: 850.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106752 Closed 6/4/2021 CDWG01 CDW GOVERNMENT, INC. 0.00 5,438.96

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

DRADJ C225392 SUPERMICRO SAS3 RAID MEZZANINE CARD -482.09 USD 0.00 -482.09

BILL C068728 XEROX DRUM CART 61.74 USD 0.00 61.74

BILL C642521 QTY 8; SAMSUNG ITEM #6148913 3,375.52 USD 0.00 3,375.52

BILL C039423 QTY4 HDMI CABLE, QTY4 MONITOR 671.12 USD 0.00 671.12

BILL C744473 QTY3 SAMSUNG ITEM #6148913 1,319.67 USD 0.00 1,319.67

BILL B568159 SUPERMICRO MINI SATA CABLE 21.69 USD 0.00 21.69

BILL B622563 SUPERMICRO 8PT 12 GBS LP ADD-ON CARD 471.31 USD 0.00 471.31

Document Total: 5,438.96

Payment Method Total: 5,438.96

Cash Account Total: 5,438.96Page 36 of 77



Page 3 of 8

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106753 Closed 6/4/2021 CENT02 CENTRAL MICHIGAN DIST HEALTH DEPARTMENT 0.00 4,746.34

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 04302021 APRIL MD 4,746.34 USD 0.00 4,746.34

Document Total: 4,746.34

Payment Method Total: 4,746.34

Cash Account Total: 4,746.34

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106754 Closed 6/4/2021 DUBO01 DUBOVSKY DAN 0.00 900.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 04282021 DFG KEYNOTE PRESENTER 900.00 USD 0.00 900.00

Document Total: 900.00

Payment Method Total: 900.00

Cash Account Total: 900.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106755 Closed 6/4/2021 ESGR01 E&S GRAPHICS INC 0.00 208.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 69690 TYPE 2 REMINDER POSTCARDS 208.00 USD 0.00 208.00

Document Total: 208.00

Payment Method Total: 208.00

Cash Account Total: 208.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106756 Closed 6/4/2021 GRAT04 GRATIOT COUNTY HERALD 0.00 270.20

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 81 COVID CLINIC ADVERTISING 270.20 USD 0.00 270.20

Document Total: 270.20

Payment Method Total: 270.20

Cash Account Total: 270.20

Page 37 of 77



Page 4 of 8

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106757 Closed 6/4/2021 HILL01 HILLMAN MARK 0.00 415.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 007834 REFUND PERMIT 415.00 USD 0.00 415.00

Document Total: 415.00

Payment Method Total: 415.00

Cash Account Total: 415.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106758 Closed 6/4/2021 LAKE02 LAKEVIEW AREA NEWS 0.00 400.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 8795 COVID AD 5/13/21 200.00 USD 0.00 200.00

BILL 8796 COVID AD 5/20/21 200.00 USD 0.00 200.00

Document Total: 400.00

Payment Method Total: 400.00

Cash Account Total: 400.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106759 Closed 6/4/2021 MCKE01 MCKESSON MEDICAL 0.00 126.59

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 18148012 N95 MASKS 126.59 USD 0.00 126.59

Document Total: 126.59

Payment Method Total: 126.59

Cash Account Total: 126.59

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106760 Closed 6/4/2021 MERC01 MERCK & CO INC 0.00 6,060.56

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 7015332618 HEP A, GARDASIL 6,060.56 USD 0.00 6,060.56

Document Total: 6,060.56

Payment Method Total: 6,060.56

Cash Account Total: 6,060.56

Page 38 of 77



Page 5 of 8

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106761 Closed 6/4/2021 MICH06 MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 0.00 5,432.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 791-10621209 APRIL FOOD FEES 5,099.00 USD 0.00 5,099.00

BILL 791-10622822 MAY FOOD FEES 333.00 USD 0.00 333.00

Document Total: 5,432.00

Payment Method Total: 5,432.00

Cash Account Total: 5,432.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106762 Closed 6/4/2021 MICH11 MICHIGAN NURSES ASSOCIATION 0.00 706.20

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 05312021 MAY DUES 706.20 USD 0.00 706.20

Document Total: 706.20

Payment Method Total: 706.20

Cash Account Total: 706.20

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106763 Closed 6/4/2021 MICH15 MICHIGAN PUBLIC HEALTH INSTITUTE 0.00 100.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 2329 MEGAN SCHULZ  VIRTUAL TRAINING 100.00 USD 0.00 100.00

Document Total: 100.00

Payment Method Total: 100.00

Cash Account Total: 100.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106764 Closed 6/4/2021 ODYS01 ODYSSEY SOFTWARE 0.00 17,675.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL I0016998 APRIL UKG PAYROLL 760.00 USD 0.00 760.00

BILL I0016981 KRONOS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: PR, TLM 16,915.00 USD 0.00 16,915.00

Document Total: 17,675.00

Payment Method Total: 17,675.00

Cash Account Total: 17,675.00

Page 39 of 77



Page 6 of 8

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106765 Closed 6/4/2021 POLY01 POLYMEDCO INC 0.00 181.79

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 01189830 PREGNANY TESTS 181.79 USD 0.00 181.79

Document Total: 181.79

Payment Method Total: 181.79

Cash Account Total: 181.79

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106766 Closed 6/4/2021 RJOU01 R JOURNEY DBA BIGGBY COFFEE 0.00 607.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 04272021 REFUND PERMIT 607.00 USD 0.00 607.00

Document Total: 607.00

Payment Method Total: 607.00

Cash Account Total: 607.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106767 Closed 6/4/2021 RAYM01 RAYMER WATER WELLS 0.00 48.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 000641 REFUND OVERPAYMENT 48.00 USD 0.00 48.00

Document Total: 48.00

Payment Method Total: 48.00

Cash Account Total: 48.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106768 Closed 6/4/2021 SPIE01 SPIEKERMAN JILL 0.00 7.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 005438 REFUND OVERPAYMENT 7.00 USD 0.00 7.00

Document Total: 7.00

Payment Method Total: 7.00

Cash Account Total: 7.00

Page 40 of 77



Page 7 of 8

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106769 Closed 6/4/2021 STAP01 STAPLES 0.00 346.60

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 3474600235 COLORED PAPER 84.99 USD 0.00 84.99

BILL 3476587022 PENS, FOLDERS, SHARPIES, RUBBER BANDS, PAPER, HIGHLITERS237.72 USD 0.00 237.72

BILL 3476891799 BLACK INK 23.89 USD 0.00 23.89

Document Total: 346.60

Payment Method Total: 346.60

Cash Account Total: 346.60

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106770 Closed 6/4/2021 STAT03 STATE OF MICHIGAN-EGLE 0.00 330.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 761-10621700 2020 TEMPORARY CAMPGROUND LICENSES 330.00 USD 0.00 330.00

Document Total: 330.00

Payment Method Total: 330.00

Cash Account Total: 330.00

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106771 Closed 6/4/2021 STAT04 STATE OF MICHIGAN-LAB 0.00 34.50

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 20210506-17 LAB 11.50 USD 0.00 11.50

BILL 20210506-9 LABS 23.00 USD 0.00 23.00

Document Total: 34.50

Payment Method Total: 34.50

Cash Account Total: 34.50

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106772 Closed 6/4/2021 TABO01 TABOR ANDREA 0.00 80.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 051520021 5/10-11 CONTRACTUAL 80.00 USD 0.00 80.00

Document Total: 80.00

Payment Method Total: 80.00

Cash Account Total: 80.00

Page 41 of 77



Page 8 of 8

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106773 Closed 6/4/2021 TEAM02 TEAMSTERS LOCAL 214 0.00 1,754.08

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 05312021 MAY DUES 1,754.08 USD 0.00 1,754.08

Document Total: 1,754.08

Payment Method Total: 1,754.08

Cash Account Total: 1,754.08

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106774 Closed 6/4/2021 VERI01 VERIZON 0.00 4,448.35

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 9880513596 5/24-6/23 CELL PHONES, HOT SPOTS 4,448.35 USD 0.00 4,448.35

Document Total: 4,448.35

Payment Method Total: 4,448.35

Cash Account Total: 4,448.35

CASH AP CASH ACCOUNT FOR AP

Doc. Type Payment Ref. Status Date Vendor Vendor Name Doc. Balance Orig. Doc. Amount

CHECK 106775 Closed 6/4/2021 YEOY01 YEO & YEO PC  CPA 0.00 1,700.00

Doc. Type Branch Vendor Ref. Description Original Amount Currency Discount Taken Amount Paid

BILL 537357 FY2020 PREP NONPROFIT INCOME TAX RETURN 1,700.00 USD 0.00 1,700.00

Document Total: 1,700.00

Payment Method Total: 1,700.00

Cash Account Total: 1,700.00

Doc. Type Count Amount Paid (USD)

Check 27 53,081.65

Prepayment 0 0.00

Refund 0 0.00

Void Check 0 0.00

Company Total: 27 53,081.65

Page 42 of 77



1/4 6/18/2021

Mid-Michigan District Health Department MAY 67% FY 2021 AP: 8

Revenue

Account Budget Current Month Year-to-Date Budget Balance
YTD% of 
Budget

1 Onsite Sewage 185,000.00 25,658.00 129,437.50 55,562.50 70%

2 Groundwater Quality 175,000.00 22,452.00 124,268.00 50,732.00 71%

3 Food Service 315,000.00 -2,391.00 264,229.27 50,770.73 84%

4 Body Art Fees 1,500.00 0.00 4,627.00 -3,127.00 308%

5 EH Misc Fees 45,000.00 2,241.62 32,019.43 12,980.57 71%

6 Vision Fees 13,000.00 4,672.00 8,328.00 36%

7 Hearing Fees 18,000.00 1,170.00 4,860.00 13,140.00 27%

8 Communicable Disease Fees 2,500.00 0.00 200.00 2,300.00 8%

9 Immunization Fees 152,500.00 4,892.35 62,473.61 90,026.39 41%

10 Family Planning/STD Fees 142,385.00 1,328.24 39,697.86 102,687.14 28%

11 Breast Cancer Fees 5,000.00 -220.00 345.55 4,654.45 7%

12 Lead Fees 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0%

13 Varnish Fees 15,000.00 0.00 524.57 14,475.43 3%

14 Breastfeeding Fees 18,000.00 141.98 2,258.99 15,741.01 13%

15 Ched Miscellaneous Fees 4,200.00 -28.68 -28.68 4,228.68 -1%

16 Miscellaneous Other Fees 100.00 0.00 -60.42 160.42 -60%

17 Deferred Revenues - Billing 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%

18 VFC/317 Vaccine Revenue 300,000.00 7,495.04 79,882.38 220,117.62 27%

19 MDHHS Grants 1,733,842.00 296,087.00 2,481,591.04 -747,749.04 143%

20 Essential Local Public Health Services 898,470.00 79,763.00 527,413.00 371,057.00 59%

21 MDHHS Fee For Service Revenue 70,000.00 0.00 10,680.00 59,320.00 15%

22 DEQ Grants 85,915.00 10,662.00 42,557.75 43,357.25 50%

Page 43 of 77



2/4 6/18/2021

23 Other Grants/Community Support 767,500.00 41,561.73 186,863.18 580,636.82 24%

24 Medicaid Outreach 103,838.00 0.00 95,692.00 8,146.00 92%

25 Medicaid Full Cost Reimbursement 230,000.00 0.00 85,359.76 144,640.24 37%

26 Interest 20,000.00 57.94 1,488.52 18,511.48 7%

27 Misc Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%

28 Donations 5,000.00 100.00 948.25 4,051.75 19%

29 Cash Over/Short 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%

30 Clinton Co - Appropriation 397,568.00 33,131.00 273,323.75 124,244.25 69%

31 Gratiot Co - Appropriation 287,263.00 23,938.50 191,508.50 95,754.50 67%

32 Montcalm Co - Appropriation 430,647.00 35,887.25 287,098.00 143,549.00 67%

33 Prior Year Adjustments 0.00 0.00 -4,000.14 4,000.14 0%

34 Space Occupancy 298,300.00 21,025.00 168,186.00 130,114.00 56%

35 Deferred Revenues/Fund Balance- Other 50,000.0 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0%

TOTAL REVENUE: 6,785,528.00 604,952.97 5,098,116.67 1,687,411.33 75%

W/O SPACE & VFC 6,187,228.00 576,432.93 4,850,048.29 1,337,179.71 78%

Page 44 of 77



3/4 6/18/2021

Mid-Michigan District Health Department MAY 67% FY 2021 AP: 8

Expenditure

Account Budget Current Month Year-to-Date Budget Balance
YTD% of 
Budget

1 Board of Health Per Diem 6,000.00 0.00 405.00 5,595.00 7%

2 Salaries 3,641,415.00 346,182.97 2,778,137.52 863,277.48 76%

3 FICA 279,444.00 22,741.18 210,247.86 69,196.14 75%

4 Health Insurance 759,401.00 64,672.83 559,499.41 199,901.59 74%

5 Dental Insurance 49,305.00 3,964.12 35,024.95 14,280.05 71%

6 Retirement 464,969.00 34,030.37 332,965.93 132,003.07 72%

7 Work Comp 31,360.00 1,462.00 9,987.78 21,372.22 32%

8 Unemployment Comp 8,000.00 0.00 1,562.00 6,438.00 20%

9 Life Insurance 6,834.00 550.73 4,216.93 2,617.07 62%

10 Physicals/memberships 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%

11 Printed Materials 6,500.00 528.16 2,226.76 4,273.24 34%

12 Postage 18,100.00 716.58 11,951.58 6,148.42 66%

13 Office Supplies 55,650.00 3,709.81 42,598.63 13,051.37 77%

14 Computer/Printer Supplies 50,800.00 8,464.23 59,266.56 -8,466.56 117%

15 Medical Supplies 76,300.00 6,231.38 20,709.49 55,590.51 27%

16 CD Meds Biologics 77,000.00 6,060.56 49,203.67 27,796.33 64%

17 VFC Supplies 300,000.00 7,495.06 79,882.39 220,117.61 27%

18 Contractual Services 127,000.00 21,792.20 185,444.58 -58,444.58 146%

19 Legal Expenses 15,000.00 253.50 8,618.58 6,381.42 57%

20 Communications 59,250.00 8,468.49 68,070.65 -8,820.65 115%

21 Travel 159,300.00 7,127.85 52,903.09 106,396.91 33%

22 Advertising & Recruitment 19,000.00 6,014.89 25,529.99 -6,529.99 134%

Page 45 of 77



4/4 6/18/2021

23 Liability Insurance 32,000.00 0.00 13,486.00 18,514.00 42%

24 Equipment Maintenance/Lease 42,900.00 810.50 8,202.93 34,697.07 19%

25 Rent 8,500.00 3,933.34 18,618.00 -10,118.00 219%

26 Space Occupancy 298,300.00 21,025.00 167,550.00 130,750.00 56%

27 Training 32,100.00 0.00 3,195.00 28,905.00 10%

28 Memberships/Certifications/Subscriptions 23,450.00 3,940.75 23,859.06 -409.06 102%

29 Tuition Reimbursement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%

30 Laboratory 8,000.00 172.20 945.10 7,054.90 12%

31 Behavioral Risk Factor Survey 22,000.00 0.00 0.00 22,000.00 0%

32 Misc Other Expense 4,200.00 0.00 0.00 4,200.00 0%

33 Computer Support 91,700.00 750.50 24,143.18 67,556.82 26%

34 Service Charges/Credit Card Fees 11,750.00 613.18 5,300.37 6,449.63 45%

35 Equipment  0.00 2,491.00 13,316.00 -13,316.00 0%

36 BOH approved capital expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%

TOTAL EXPENSES 6,785,528.00 584,203.38 4,817,068.99 1,968,459.01 71%

W/O SPACE & VFC 6,187,228.00 555,683.32 4,569,636.60 1,617,591.40 74%

Revenue Over Expenditures (Deficit) 0.00 20,749.59 281,047.68 -281,047.68 0%

Revenue Over Expenditures (Deficit) without BOH 
approved capital expense 0.00 20,749.61 281,047.68 -280,411.69 0%

Page 46 of 77



User: MELISSA 
SELBY

2021 2020 Variance %

Cash & Cash Equivalents  3,935,105.52  2,977,141.54  957,963.98 24.34%

Account Receivable  25,033.47  87,834.83 (62,801.36) -250.87%

Other Receivables  208,231.64  388,746.59 (180,514.95) -86.69%

Prepaid Expenses  23,720.96  24,915.55 (1,194.59) -5.04%

VFC Inventory  58,131.37  70,086.60 (11,955.23) -20.57%

 4,250,222.96  3,548,725.11  701,497.85 16.5%

 140,992.33  452.75  140,539.58 99.68%

Accounts Payable  53,352.45 (39,599.84)  92,952.29 174.22%

Due to Others  898,665.94  920,087.26 (21,421.32) -2.38%

VFC Inventory  58,131.38  70,086.60 (11,955.22) -20.57%

Trust Funds  17,986.86  17,986.86

Deferred Revenues  0.00  0.00

Other Long-term Liabs  86,033.00  86,033.00

FUND BALANCE RESTRICTED DENTAL  100,409.02  105,963.53 (5,554.51) -5.53%

FUND BALANCE END OF YEAR  387,012.67  100,042.04  286,970.63 74.15%

FUND BALANCE  201,159.69  412,769.87 (211,610.18) -12.94%

FUND BALANCE - TECHNICAL/EQUIP  489,494.46  489,494.46

FUND BALANCE-FACILITY DEV.  124,580.00  124,580.00

FUND BALANCE-SELF INS BONDS  13,949.72  13,949.72

FUND BALANCE-FUTURE RETIREMENT  323,830.00  608,829.80 (284,999.80) -88.01%

FUND BALANCE-COMPENSATED LEAVE  285,988.76  285,988.76

FUND BALANCE-UNEMPLOYMENT  55,000.00  55,000.00

FUND BALANCE - TRAINING  35,000.00  35,000.00

FUND BALANCE - BRFS  11,522.00  11,522.00

FUND BALANCE-HEALTH INSURANCE  160,000.00  160,000.00

FUND BALANCE-POTENTIAL CLAIMS  168,289.00  93,734.00  74,555.00 44.3%

FUND BALANCE CHW  300,000.00  0.00  300,000.00 100.%

FUND BALANCE OPEB  57,778.00  0.00  57,778.00 100.%

Net Income / (Loss)  281,047.68 (3,195.70)  284,243.38 101.14%

 4,250,222.96  3,548,725.11  701,497.85 16.48%

 0.00  0.00  0.00 100.%

Employee Deductions

Total Liabilities

Difference

Total Assets

Liabilities

Assets

Mid-Michigan District Health Department

Balance Sheet - Comparative

As of   May 31, 2021

Page 47 of 77



 

CLINTON OFFICE 
1307 E. Townsend Rd. 
Saint Johns, MI  48879-9036 
(989) 224-2195 

GRATIOT OFFICE 
151 Commerce Dr. 
Ithaca, MI  48847-1627 
(989) 875-3681 

MONTCALM OFFICE 
615 N. State St. 
Stanton, MI  48888-9702 
(989) 831-5237 

BOARD OF HEALTH: Bruce DeLong George Bailey Betty Kellenberger 

 Dwight Washington, Ph.D. Chuck Murphy Adam Petersen 

 

WWW.MMDHD.ORG –––––––– MARK W. (MARCUS) CHEATHAM, PH.D. 
Health Officer 

JENNIFER MORSE, MD, MPH, FAAFP 
Medical Director 

 

Mid-Michigan District Health Department (MMDHD) 

FY 21/22 Proposed Budget 
 
 
Budget Overview and Comparative Summary 
 
A. MMDHD Budget Process 

Under the Michigan Public Health Code (Section 2415 of P.A. 368 of 1978) and the Agency’s 
Intergovernmental Agreement, the MMDHD is operated by and serves Clinton, Gratiot, and Montcalm 
Counties. This occurs via a District Board of Health comprised of two members each from the three 
County Boards of Commissioners, with current membership including: 
 

Bruce DeLong (Clinton)   Dwight Washington (Clinton) 
George Bailey (Gratiot)   Chuck Murphy (Gratiot) 
Michael Beach (Montcalm)   Adam Petersen (Montcalm) 

 
The Michigan Public Health Code (Section 2417) and the Agency’s Intergovernmental Agreement require 
the District Board of Health to approve all expenditures of the local health department and to use a 
mutually agreeable funding formula for allocating costs among the participating counties in approving 
each fiscal year’s budget. Once reviewed and approved by the District Board of Health, the proposed 
budget allocations are forwarded to the individual County Boards of Commissioners for final approval to 
set each county’s public health general fund appropriation. 
 

B. Funding Allocation Principles 

• Allocations among the counties need to avoid large swings/shifts in local funding requests from year-
to-year and need to be “equitable” related to services received. 

• Agency staffing and programs currently meet State Accreditation minimum standards and need a fixed 
base of funding support to maintain them. 

• The Intergovernmental Agreement includes a specific mechanism for determining how the 
appropriation dollars are allocated among the three counties.  The contribution request is allocated 
with a base amount, and any increments pro-rata among the counties based on average percentages 
of actual staff time worked by county in each program service area over the most recent five years, 
applied to the proposed annual budget. (See the attached Local Appropriations Policy approved by the 
BOH.) 
 

C. FY 21/22 Budget Assumptions/Pending Issues/Staffing Adjustments  

• The 21/22 Budget assumes that state/federal funding will remain flat for most programs.  There is 
additional funding in the Essential Local Public Health Service Funding (ELPHS).  There is an assumption 
that there will be additional funding for the COVID-19 pandemic response in the 21/22 fiscal year.  We 
think these assumptions are valid because the current draft Michigan budgets include an increase in 
ELPHS, and because MDHHS is involving local health departments in the planning for additional COVID 
related infrastructure spending. Adjustments will be made depending on the actual amount that is 
funded.    The program grants as well as fees collected will need to be monitored closely in the 
upcoming fiscal year and adjustments will be made if necessary. 

Page 48 of 77



 
 

• The Community Pathways program continues to be a needed program in the communities.  The Mid-
Michigan Health Plan fund balance continues to fund this program.  

• There is a minor accounting for annual upgrades and/or replacement of Information Technology (IT) 
equipment (computers, telephones, etc.) as they are necessary for maximizing efficiency and 
productivity in the delivery of client services.  

 
D. FY 21/22 Budget Development Summary 

As in past years, efforts to reduce supplies, travel and communication were factored into the budget which 
will need to be monitored carefully in the upcoming fiscal year.  There have been some increases in 
operations such as health insurance increases, retirement costs, small cost of living wage increases, supply 
costs, etc. but we have tried to be diligent in attempting to keep costs down and increase revenue streams 
such as through grant funding and billing commercial insurances, etc.  MMDHD is not requesting an overall 
appropriation increase for the FY 21/22 budget.   
 

E. Board of Health and County Requested Allocations 
 

FY 21/22 County Allocation Request Clinton Gratiot Montcalm 

  FY 20/21 Appropriation Amount $397,569 $287,262 $430,647 

    Increase Requested - $20,000 $7,269 $4,768 $7,963 

Changes Based on Service Trends (IGA)  $4,647 $(454) $(4,193)  

FY 21/22 Totals = $1,135,478 $409,485 $291,576 $434,417 
 

   
 

Page 49 of 77



Mid-Michigan District Health Department
FISCAL YEAR 21-22 BUDGET 

10/01/21-09/30/22

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES PBB
COMMUNITY HEALTH 

ASSESSMENT
DRUG FREE COMMUNITIES -

MONTCALM

Salaries & Wages                                   738,793                                      7,627                                     22,598                                   142,924 

Fringe Benefits                                   358,963                                      2,552                                      9,577                                     55,178 

Capital Expense for Equipment & Facility Developm -                                         -                                         -                                         

Contractual (Sub-Contracts) 100,000                                 -                                         2,000                                     -                                         

Supplies & Materials 12,000                                   5,000                                     500                                        500                                        

Travel /Training 10,000                                   1,000                                     500                                        3,500                                     

Communications 7,000                                     2,000                                     50                                          100                                        

Reserves/ Facility Development -                                         -                                         -                                         

Space Costs 40,000                                   1,000                                     2,000                                     700                                        

All Others 100,000                                 3,000                                     1,000                                     1,100                                     

   Total Direct Expenditures 1,366,756 22,179 38,225 204,002
Administrative Overhead (1,170,530.73)                        2,577                                     8,145                                     50,148                                   

Information Technology (IT) Overhead -                                         367                                        1,160                                     7,143                                     

EH Administrative Overhead -                                         -                                         -                                         

CHED Administrative Overhead -                                         -                                         -                                         

   Total Expenditures 196,225 25,123 47,530 261,294

REVENUE CATEGORY

Fees 1st & 2nd Party 225                                        

Fees & Collections - 3rd Party

Federal/State Funding - NON MDHHS

MA Full Cost Reimbursement

VFC 317

Cigarette Tax

Space 24,000                                   2,000                                     2,000                                     700                                        

Interest 20,000                                   

Deferred Revenue 50,000                                   

Community Support & Other Grants 50,000                                   21,000                                   25,000                                   250,000                                 

Mid-Michigan Health Plan

MCDC Reimbursement 12,000                                   

Shared Services - Health Departments 40,000                                   

County Reimbursement

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS -FFS

MCH Block Grant

Essential Local Public Health Services

   Total Revenues: 196,225 23,000 27,000 250,700

Local Funds (Appropriations)

   Local Funds 0 2,123 20,530 10,594

Prepared By:  Melissa Selby 6/7/2021 1/10

Page 50 of 77



Mid-Michigan District Health Department
FISCAL YEAR 21-22 BUDGET 

10/01/21-09/30/22

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
Salaries & Wages

Fringe Benefits

Capital Expense for Equipment & Facility Developm

Contractual (Sub-Contracts)

Supplies & Materials

Travel /Training

Communications

Reserves/ Facility Development

Space Costs

All Others 

   Total Direct Expenditures
Administrative Overhead

Information Technology (IT) Overhead

EH Administrative Overhead

CHED Administrative Overhead

   Total Expenditures

REVENUE CATEGORY

Fees 1st & 2nd Party

Fees & Collections - 3rd Party

Federal/State Funding - NON MDHHS

MA Full Cost Reimbursement

VFC 317

Cigarette Tax

Space

Interest

Deferred Revenue

Community Support & Other Grants

Mid-Michigan Health Plan

MCDC Reimbursement

Shared Services - Health Departments

County Reimbursement

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS -FFS

MCH Block Grant

Essential Local Public Health Services

   Total Revenues:

Local Funds (Appropriations)

   Local Funds 

DRUG FREE COMMUNITIES -
CLINTON

EMERGENCY 
PREPAREDNESS INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY WATER

                                    57,949                                     80,766                                     69,533                                   155,191 

                                    23,286                                     29,441                                     35,748                                     74,479 

10,000                                   -                                         24,000                                   

6,000                                     3,000                                     10,000                                   1,000                                     

10,000                                   7,000                                     6,000                                     18,000                                   

100                                        1,000                                     11,000                                   2,000                                     

-                                         -                                         -                                         -                                         

5,000                                     2,000                                     4,000                                     6,000                                     

6,000                                     100                                        4,000                                     100                                        

118,335 123,307 140,281 280,770
20,564                                   27,898                                   26,651                                   58,140                                   

2,929                                     3,974                                     (162,932)                                8,281                                     

196,470                                 

141,829 155,179 4,000 543,661

-                                         175,000                                 

60,015                                   

5,000                                     2,000                                     4,000                                     6,000                                     

125,000                                 

140,000                                 

250,000                                 

130,000 142,000 4,000 491,015

11,829 13,179 0 52,646

Prepared By:  Melissa Selby 6/7/2021 2/10

Page 51 of 77



Mid-Michigan District Health Department
FISCAL YEAR 21-22 BUDGET 

10/01/21-09/30/22

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
Salaries & Wages

Fringe Benefits

Capital Expense for Equipment & Facility Developm

Contractual (Sub-Contracts)

Supplies & Materials

Travel /Training

Communications

Reserves/ Facility Development

Space Costs

All Others 

   Total Direct Expenditures
Administrative Overhead

Information Technology (IT) Overhead

EH Administrative Overhead

CHED Administrative Overhead

   Total Expenditures

REVENUE CATEGORY

Fees 1st & 2nd Party

Fees & Collections - 3rd Party

Federal/State Funding - NON MDHHS

MA Full Cost Reimbursement

VFC 317

Cigarette Tax

Space

Interest

Deferred Revenue

Community Support & Other Grants

Mid-Michigan Health Plan

MCDC Reimbursement

Shared Services - Health Departments

County Reimbursement

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS -FFS

MCH Block Grant

Essential Local Public Health Services

   Total Revenues:

Local Funds (Appropriations)

   Local Funds 

BODY ART
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

ADMINISTRATION FOOD
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

GENERAL

                                     3,368                                   343,806                                   179,181                                     40,105 

                                     1,308                                   136,742                                     87,249                                     17,532 

2,000                                     

100                                        8,000                                     5,000                                     100                                        

100                                        12,500                                   14,000                                   2,000                                     

50                                          7,000                                     1,500                                     200                                        

-                                         -                                         -                                         -                                         

100                                        35,000                                   7,000                                     2,000                                     

-                                         32,000                                   100                                        -                                         

5,026 577,048 294,030 61,937
1,184                                     121,648                                 67,445                                   14,590                                   

169                                        17,327                                   9,607                                     2,078                                     

4,000                                     (681,023)                                227,917                                 49,305                                   

10,378 35,000 598,999 127,910

1,500                                     -                                         300,000                                 45,000                                   

25,000                                   

100                                        35,000                                   7,000                                     2,000                                     

250,000                                 -                                         

1,600 35,000 557,000 72,000

8,778 0 41,999 55,910

Prepared By:  Melissa Selby 6/7/2021 3/10

Page 52 of 77



Mid-Michigan District Health Department
FISCAL YEAR 21-22 BUDGET 

10/01/21-09/30/22

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
Salaries & Wages

Fringe Benefits

Capital Expense for Equipment & Facility Developm

Contractual (Sub-Contracts)

Supplies & Materials

Travel /Training

Communications

Reserves/ Facility Development

Space Costs

All Others 

   Total Direct Expenditures
Administrative Overhead

Information Technology (IT) Overhead

EH Administrative Overhead

CHED Administrative Overhead

   Total Expenditures

REVENUE CATEGORY

Fees 1st & 2nd Party

Fees & Collections - 3rd Party

Federal/State Funding - NON MDHHS

MA Full Cost Reimbursement

VFC 317

Cigarette Tax

Space

Interest

Deferred Revenue

Community Support & Other Grants

Mid-Michigan Health Plan

MCDC Reimbursement

Shared Services - Health Departments

County Reimbursement

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS -FFS

MCH Block Grant

Essential Local Public Health Services

   Total Revenues:

Local Funds (Appropriations)

   Local Funds 

NUISANCE SEWAGE PANDEMIC RESPONSE IBLCLC

                                     9,582                                   151,105                                   295,738                                     27,742 

                                     4,243                                     72,760                                   114,594                                     14,854 

100                                        1,000                                     5,000                                     1,000                                     

1,000                                     18,000                                   3,000                                     2,000                                     

100                                        2,000                                     50                                          1,000                                     

-                                         -                                         -                                         -                                         

500                                        6,000                                     -                                         500                                        

-                                         100                                        -                                         100                                        

15,525 250,965 418,382 47,196
3,500                                     56,670                                   103,873                                 10,783                                   

499                                        8,072                                     14,795                                   1,536                                     

11,827                                   191,504                                 

10,976                                   

31,350 507,210 537,051 70,491

-                                         185,000                                 -                                         

18,000                                   

-                                         

500                                        6,000                                     -                                         500                                        

450,000                                 

40,000                                   

250,000                                 -                                         

500 441,000 450,000 58,500

30,850 66,210 87,051 11,991

Prepared By:  Melissa Selby 6/7/2021 4/10

Page 53 of 77



Mid-Michigan District Health Department
FISCAL YEAR 21-22 BUDGET 

10/01/21-09/30/22

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
Salaries & Wages

Fringe Benefits

Capital Expense for Equipment & Facility Developm

Contractual (Sub-Contracts)

Supplies & Materials

Travel /Training

Communications

Reserves/ Facility Development

Space Costs

All Others 

   Total Direct Expenditures
Administrative Overhead

Information Technology (IT) Overhead

EH Administrative Overhead

CHED Administrative Overhead

   Total Expenditures

REVENUE CATEGORY

Fees 1st & 2nd Party

Fees & Collections - 3rd Party

Federal/State Funding - NON MDHHS

MA Full Cost Reimbursement

VFC 317

Cigarette Tax

Space

Interest

Deferred Revenue

Community Support & Other Grants

Mid-Michigan Health Plan

MCDC Reimbursement

Shared Services - Health Departments

County Reimbursement

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS -FFS

MCH Block Grant

Essential Local Public Health Services

   Total Revenues:

Local Funds (Appropriations)

   Local Funds 

BLOOD LEAD
COMMUNITY HEALTH 

ADMINISTRATION BCCCP COMMUNICABLE DISEASE

                                    13,825                                   239,204                                      9,406                                     33,538 

                                     5,191                                   102,439                                      4,465                                     10,354 

5,000                                     -                                         

5,000                                     15,000                                   100                                        2,000                                     

200                                        12,000                                   100                                        1,500                                     

50                                          8,000                                     50                                          3,000                                     

-                                         -                                         -                                         

1,000                                     110,000                                 100                                        2,500                                     

100                                        50,000                                   -                                         1,500                                     

25,366 541,643 14,221 54,392
4,814                                     86,485                                   3,511                                     11,111                                   

686                                        12,319                                   500                                        1,583                                     

4,900                                     (530,347)                                3,574                                     11,310                                   

35,765 110,100 21,807 78,396

-                                         100                                        2,000                                     

15,000                                   5,000                                     

5,000                                     

1,000                                     110,000                                 100                                        2,500                                     

-                                         

5,000                                     

50,000                                   

26,000 110,100 5,100 54,500

9,765 0 16,707 23,896

Prepared By:  Melissa Selby 6/7/2021 5/10

Page 54 of 77



Mid-Michigan District Health Department
FISCAL YEAR 21-22 BUDGET 

10/01/21-09/30/22

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
Salaries & Wages

Fringe Benefits

Capital Expense for Equipment & Facility Developm

Contractual (Sub-Contracts)

Supplies & Materials

Travel /Training

Communications

Reserves/ Facility Development

Space Costs

All Others 

   Total Direct Expenditures
Administrative Overhead

Information Technology (IT) Overhead

EH Administrative Overhead

CHED Administrative Overhead

   Total Expenditures

REVENUE CATEGORY

Fees 1st & 2nd Party

Fees & Collections - 3rd Party

Federal/State Funding - NON MDHHS

MA Full Cost Reimbursement

VFC 317

Cigarette Tax

Space

Interest

Deferred Revenue

Community Support & Other Grants

Mid-Michigan Health Plan

MCDC Reimbursement

Shared Services - Health Departments

County Reimbursement

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS -FFS

MCH Block Grant

Essential Local Public Health Services

   Total Revenues:

Local Funds (Appropriations)

   Local Funds 

CHILDRENS SPECIAL HEALTH 
CARE SERVICES COMMUNITY PATHWAYS FAMILY PLANNING HEARING

                                  115,385                                     71,823                                   176,961                                     40,848 

                                    52,430                                     39,358                                     81,235                                      9,710 

-                                         

1,000                                     3,000                                     42,000                                   1,000                                     

1,000                                     4,000                                     8,000                                     4,000                                     

100                                        3,000                                     100                                        1,000                                     

-                                         -                                         

4,500                                     3,500                                     8,000                                     2,000                                     

-                                         1,000                                     3,000                                     1,000                                     

174,415 125,681 319,297 59,559
42,481                                   28,145                                   65,361                                   12,799                                   

6,051                                     4,009                                     9,310                                     1,823                                     

43,242                                   28,649                                   66,532                                   13,028                                   

266,190 186,483 460,499 87,208

100                                        10,000                                   1,000                                     

120,000                                 12,000                                   

50,000                                   

100,000                                 

-                                         

4,500                                     3,500                                     6,000                                     2,000                                     

-                                         

175,000                                 

500                                        

113,000                                 200,000                                 

55,000                                   

49,235                                   

222,500 178,600 436,000 64,735

43,690 7,883 24,499 22,473

Prepared By:  Melissa Selby 6/7/2021 6/10

Page 55 of 77



Mid-Michigan District Health Department
FISCAL YEAR 21-22 BUDGET 

10/01/21-09/30/22

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
Salaries & Wages

Fringe Benefits

Capital Expense for Equipment & Facility Developm

Contractual (Sub-Contracts)

Supplies & Materials

Travel /Training

Communications

Reserves/ Facility Development

Space Costs

All Others 

   Total Direct Expenditures
Administrative Overhead

Information Technology (IT) Overhead

EH Administrative Overhead

CHED Administrative Overhead

   Total Expenditures

REVENUE CATEGORY

Fees 1st & 2nd Party

Fees & Collections - 3rd Party

Federal/State Funding - NON MDHHS

MA Full Cost Reimbursement

VFC 317

Cigarette Tax

Space

Interest

Deferred Revenue

Community Support & Other Grants

Mid-Michigan Health Plan

MCDC Reimbursement

Shared Services - Health Departments

County Reimbursement

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS -FFS

MCH Block Grant

Essential Local Public Health Services

   Total Revenues:

Local Funds (Appropriations)

   Local Funds 

HIV IMMUNIZATIONS IMMUNIZATION ACTION PLAN MEDICAID OUTREACH

                                    13,087                                   113,833                                   100,404                                     47,957 

                                     3,285                                     56,404                                     47,019                                     24,325 

2,000                                     385,000                                 2,000                                     800                                        

500                                        2,000                                     4,000                                     3,000                                     

100                                        500                                        100                                        100                                        

-                                         -                                         -                                         

200                                        5,000                                     2,000                                     2,500                                     

-                                         1,500                                     -                                         -                                         

19,172 564,236 155,522 78,681
4,144                                     43,094                                   37,319                                   18,298                                   

590                                        6,138                                     5,316                                     2,606                                     

4,219                                     43,866                                   37,988                                   18,625                                   

28,125 657,335 236,144 118,211

1,100                                     30,000                                   -                                         

120,000                                 

25,000                                   35,000                                   59,105                                   

300,000                                 

.

200                                        4,000                                     2,000                                     2,500                                     

-                                         

20,000                                   27,000                                   80,638                                   

15,000                                   

-                                         

75,000                                   

21,300 581,000 132,638 61,605

6,825 76,335 103,506 56,605

Prepared By:  Melissa Selby 6/7/2021 7/10

Page 56 of 77



Mid-Michigan District Health Department
FISCAL YEAR 21-22 BUDGET 

10/01/21-09/30/22

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
Salaries & Wages

Fringe Benefits

Capital Expense for Equipment & Facility Developm

Contractual (Sub-Contracts)

Supplies & Materials

Travel /Training

Communications

Reserves/ Facility Development

Space Costs

All Others 

   Total Direct Expenditures
Administrative Overhead

Information Technology (IT) Overhead

EH Administrative Overhead

CHED Administrative Overhead

   Total Expenditures

REVENUE CATEGORY

Fees 1st & 2nd Party

Fees & Collections - 3rd Party

Federal/State Funding - NON MDHHS

MA Full Cost Reimbursement

VFC 317

Cigarette Tax

Space

Interest

Deferred Revenue

Community Support & Other Grants

Mid-Michigan Health Plan

MCDC Reimbursement

Shared Services - Health Departments

County Reimbursement

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS -FFS

MCH Block Grant

Essential Local Public Health Services

   Total Revenues:

Local Funds (Appropriations)

   Local Funds 

MCIR STD VISION WIC

                                    92,743                                     33,621                                     49,847                                   313,607 

                                    48,718                                     14,660                                     13,826                                   164,210 

7,000                                     150                                        500                                        7,000                                     

5,000                                     500                                        3,000                                     8,000                                     

2,000                                     100                                        100                                        4,000                                     

-                                         -                                         -                                         -                                         

2,500                                     1,000                                     2,000                                     27,000                                   

-                                         500                                        1,000                                     3,000                                     

157,961 50,531 70,273 526,817
35,810                                   12,222                                   16,118                                   120,956                                 

5,101                                     1,741                                     2,296                                     17,229                                   

36,451                                   12,441                                   16,407                                   123,123                                 

235,323 76,934 105,095 788,125

2,000                                     1,000                                     

-                                         12,000                                   

10,000                                   -                                         

2,500                                     1,000                                     2,000                                     24,000                                   

150,000                                 702,000                                 

-                                         

30,000                                   49,235                                   

152,500 43,000 64,235 726,000

82,823 33,934 40,860 62,125

Prepared By:  Melissa Selby 6/7/2021 8/10

Page 57 of 77



Mid-Michigan District Health Department
FISCAL YEAR 21-22 BUDGET 

10/01/21-09/30/22

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
Salaries & Wages

Fringe Benefits

Capital Expense for Equipment & Facility Developm

Contractual (Sub-Contracts)

Supplies & Materials

Travel /Training

Communications

Reserves/ Facility Development

Space Costs

All Others 

   Total Direct Expenditures
Administrative Overhead

Information Technology (IT) Overhead

EH Administrative Overhead

CHED Administrative Overhead

   Total Expenditures

REVENUE CATEGORY

Fees 1st & 2nd Party

Fees & Collections - 3rd Party

Federal/State Funding - NON MDHHS

MA Full Cost Reimbursement

VFC 317

Cigarette Tax

Space

Interest

Deferred Revenue

Community Support & Other Grants

Mid-Michigan Health Plan

MCDC Reimbursement

Shared Services - Health Departments

County Reimbursement

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS -FFS

MCH Block Grant

Essential Local Public Health Services

   Total Revenues:

Local Funds (Appropriations)

   Local Funds 

WIC PEER COUNSELING
COMMUNITY HEALTH 

GENERAL ORAL HEALTH CLINICAL VARNISH

                                    60,270                                     33,209                                     20,690                                     34,475 

                                    15,526                                     15,648                                     12,632                                     21,053 

1,000                                     800                                        500                                        500                                        

2,000                                     1,500                                     500                                        500                                        

1,500                                     100                                        100                                        100                                        

-                                         -                                         -                                         -                                         

5,000                                     800                                        400                                        2,000                                     

500                                        -                                         100                                        200                                        

85,796 52,057 34,922 58,828
19,187                                   12,368                                   8,435                                     14,057                                   

2,733                                     1,762                                     1,202                                     2,002                                     

19,531                                   12,589                                   8,586                                     14,308                                   

127,248 78,775 53,145 89,195

1,100                                     -                                         

-                                         15,000                                   

-                                         -                                         

5,000                                     800                                        400                                        2,000                                     

10,000                                   25,000                                   25,000                                   

114,000                                 

-                                         40,204                                   

119,000 11,900 25,400 82,204

8,248 66,875 27,745 6,991

Prepared By:  Melissa Selby 6/7/2021 9/10

Page 58 of 77



Mid-Michigan District Health Department
FISCAL YEAR 21-22 BUDGET 

10/01/21-09/30/22

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
Salaries & Wages

Fringe Benefits

Capital Expense for Equipment & Facility Developm

Contractual (Sub-Contracts)

Supplies & Materials

Travel /Training

Communications

Reserves/ Facility Development

Space Costs

All Others 

   Total Direct Expenditures
Administrative Overhead

Information Technology (IT) Overhead

EH Administrative Overhead

CHED Administrative Overhead

   Total Expenditures

REVENUE CATEGORY

Fees 1st & 2nd Party

Fees & Collections - 3rd Party

Federal/State Funding - NON MDHHS

MA Full Cost Reimbursement

VFC 317

Cigarette Tax

Space

Interest

Deferred Revenue

Community Support & Other Grants

Mid-Michigan Health Plan

MCDC Reimbursement

Shared Services - Health Departments

County Reimbursement

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS - CPBC

MDHHS -FFS

MCH Block Grant

Essential Local Public Health Services

   Total Revenues:

Local Funds (Appropriations)

   Local Funds 

TOTAL PRIOR YEAR (20-21) Difference

                                3,940,740                             3,641,415                                   299,325 

                                1,780,995                             1,599,251                                   181,744 

                                             -                                            -                                               -   

                                   143,000                                148,000                                      (5,000)

                                   534,650                                584,350                                    (49,700)

                                   169,900                                191,400                                    (21,500)

                                     59,250                                  59,250                                             -   

                                             -                                            -                                               -   

                                   293,800                                306,800                                    (13,000)

                                   211,000                                250,800                                    (39,800)

                          7,133,336                       6,781,265                             352,070 

                                             (0)                                          (0)                                             -   

                                             (0)                                          (0)                                             -   

                                             -                                      4,263                                             -   
                                              0                                          (0)                                             -   

                          7,133,336                       6,785,528                             347,807 

                                   755,125                            772,185.00                                    (17,060)

                                   317,000                            340,000.00                                    (23,000)

                                   135,015                             85,915.00                                     49,100 

                                   234,105                            333,838.11                                    (99,733)

                                   300,000                            300,000.00                                             -   

                                             -                                            -                                               -   

                                   272,800                            298,300.00                                    (25,500)

                                     20,000                             20,000.00                                             -   

                                     50,000                             50,000.00                                             -   

                                   531,000                            530,000.00                                       1,000 

                                   175,000                            185,000.00                                    (10,000)

                                     12,000                             12,000.00                                             -   

                                     40,000                             40,000.00                                             -   

                                          500                                  500.00                                             -   

                                1,856,638                         1,508,638.00                                   348,000 

                                   140,000                            140,000.00                                             -   

                                     70,000                             70,000.00                                             -   

                                     85,204                             85,204.00                                             -   

                                1,003,470                            898,470.00                                   105,000 

                          5,997,857                       5,670,050                             327,807 

                          1,135,478                       1,115,478                               20,000 

Prepared By:  Melissa Selby 6/7/2021 10/10

Page 59 of 77



COMMUNITY HEALTH EDUCATION DIVISION
FEE SCHEDULE

Proposed - FY 21-22

Procedure Code Procedure Name
Approved 20/21 Proposed  21-22

10060 I & D Simple 170.00$                  170.00$              

10120 FOREIGN BODY, SIMPLE 285.00$                  285.00$              

CSHCS CASE MANAGEMENT Title 5 201.58$                  201.58$              

CSHCS CASE MANAGEMENT Title 5 & 19 201.58$                  201.58$              

CSHCS LEVEL I POC -  HOME Title 5 150.00$                  150.00$              

CSHCS LEVEL I POC -  HOME Title 5 & 19 150.00$                  150.00$              

CSHCS LEVEL I POC -  PHONE Title 5 110.00$                  110.00$              

CSHCS LEVEL I POC -  PHONE Title 5 & 19 110.00$                  110.00$              

CSHCS Level II Care Coord. Title 5 30.00$                     30.00$                 

CSHCS Level II Care Coord. Title 5 & 19 30.00$                     30.00$                 

11055 PARING OR CUTTING LESION (single) 90.00$                     90.00$                 

11056 PARING OR CUTTING LESIONS (2-4) 98.00$                     98.00$                 

11057 PARING OR CUTTING LESIONS (over 4) 120.00$                  120.00$              

11100 LESION, BIOPSY (1) 150.00$                  150.00$              

11101 LESION, Bx EA. ADDTL. 55.00$                     55.00$                 

11200 EXC. SKIN TAG LESION 130.00$                  130.00$              

11201 REMOVE SKIN TAGS ADD-ON (EXCISION, LESION EA ADD'L 10) 55.00$                     55.00$                 

11719 TRIMMING OF NAILS 50.00$                     50.00$                 

11730 AVULSION NAIL PLATE 150.00$                  150.00$              

11750 EXCISION  NAIL, (PERMANENT) 335.00$                  335.00$              

11765 EXCISION SKIN WEDGE, INGROWN  NAIL 235.00$                  235.00$              

11981 INSERTION, DRUG DELIVERY IMPLANT 200.00$                  200.00$              

11982 REMOVAL, DRUG DELIVERY IMPLANT 225.00$                  225.00$              

11983 REMOVAL, WITH REINSERTION, DRUG DELIVERY IMPLANT 321.00$                  321.00$              

LAB STATE LAB FEE - BL 18.00$                     18.00$                 

12010 HEARING SCREEN-SCHOOL AGREEMENT 1.00$                       1.00$                   

CONTRACT VISION SCREEN-SCHOOL AGREEMENT 1.00$                       1.00$                   

LAB Lab Fee-CT/GC 17.00$                     17.00$                 

CONTRACT HEIGHT/WEIGHT MEASUREMENT 1.00$                       1.00$                   

LAB COURT ORDERED TESTING 170.00$                  170.00$              
Revised: 6/7/2021 Page 60 of 77



COMMUNITY HEALTH EDUCATION DIVISION
FEE SCHEDULE

Proposed - FY 21-22

Procedure Code Procedure Name
Approved 20/21 Proposed  21-22

LAB HERPES CULTURE 11.50$                     11.50$                 

SIDS INFANT LOSS SUPPORT 125.00$                  125.00$              

14005 TOBACCO EDUCATION CLASS 25.00$                     25.00$                 

14500 VBA - IMO WITH EXAM (VETERAN EXAM) 50.00$                     50.00$                 

14501 VBA - IMO W/O EXAM (VETERAN EXAM) 75.00$                     75.00$                 

14502 VBA - LEVEL II (VETERAN EXAM) 210.00$                  210.00$              

14503 VBA - LEVEL I (VETERAN EXAM) 260.00$                  260.00$              

14504 VBA - COMPREHENSIVE (VETERAN EXAM) 310.00$                  310.00$              

14505 VHA - LEVEL A (VETERAN EXAM) 120.00$                  120.00$              

14506 VHA - LEVEL B (VETERAN EXAM) 230.00$                  230.00$              

14507 VHA - LEVEL C (VETERAN EXAM) 350.00$                  350.00$              

14508 VHA - LEVEL D (VETERAN EXAM) 500.00$                  500.00$              

14509 VHA - LEVEL E (VETERAN EXAM) 625.00$                  625.00$              

16000 BURN CARE 120.00$                  120.00$              

17000 LESION, DESTRUCT, PREMALIG (1) 105.00$                  105.00$              

17003 LESION, DESTRUCT, PRMALIG. EA ADDTL 25.00$                     25.00$                 

17110 LESION, DESTRUCT, BENIGN (1-14) 160.00$                  160.00$              

17111 DESTRUCT LESION, 15 OR M 200.00$                  200.00$              

20526 INJ., THERAPEUTIC 100.00$                  100.00$              

20550 INJ., TENDON SHEATH, LIGAMENT 105.00$                  105.00$              

20552 INJ., SNGLE/MULT. TRIG PT. 1-2 MUSCLES 100.00$                  100.00$              

20553 INJ., SNGLE/MULT. TRIG PT. 3+ MUSCLES 110.00$                  110.00$              

20600 ARTHROCENTESIS 90.00$                     90.00$                 

20605 ARTHRO/ASP/INJ INTERM. W/O  ULTRASOUND 90.00$                     90.00$                 

20610 ARTHRO/ASP/INJ MAJOR 92.00$                     92.00$                 

29580 UNNA BOOT 100.00$                  100.00$              

30901 CONTROL NASAL HEMORRHAGE 145.00$                  145.00$              

36415 VENIPUNCTURE BLOOD DRAW 30.00$                     30.00$                 

36416 CAPILLARY BLOOD DRAW 10.00$                     10.00$                 

36416 BLOOD LEAD INCENTIVE FEE (as permitted by Insurance carrier) 25.00$                     25.00$                 
Revised: 6/7/2021 Page 61 of 77



COMMUNITY HEALTH EDUCATION DIVISION
FEE SCHEDULE

Proposed - FY 21-22

Procedure Code Procedure Name
Approved 20/21 Proposed  21-22

40022 IRON-FeSO4 8.00$                       8.00$                   

40024 TERCONAZOLE/TERAZOL CREAM 20.00$                     20.00$                 

40028 PLAN B (ER CONTRACEPTIVE) 34.00$                     34.00$                 

40055 DIFLUCAN PER DOSE 1.00$                       1.00$                   

46040 I & D, RECTAL ABSCESS 900.00$                  900.00$              

46083 INCISION, THROMBOSIS 250.00$                  250.00$              

46900 DESTRUCTION LESION 365.00$                  365.00$              

54050 DESTRUCTION LESION 200.00$                  200.00$              

54060 DESTRUCTION LESION 265.00$                  265.00$              

54065 DESTRUCTION LESION 325.00$                  325.00$              

56501 DESTRUCTION LESION 155.00$                  155.00$              

56515 DESTRUCTION LESION 335.00$                  335.00$              

58300 IUS INSERT 100.00$                  100.00$              

58301 IUS REMOVAL 135.00$                  135.00$              

69200 REMOVE FOREIGN BODY, EAR CANAL 295.00$                  295.00$              

69210 EAR IRRIGATION 70.00$                     70.00$                 

80300 DRUG SCREEN 75.00$                     75.00$                 

81000 URINALYSIS, NONAUTO W/SC 12.00$                     12.00$                 

81002 URINALYSIS, DIPSTICK 15.00$                     15.00$                 

81025 PREGNANCY TEST 10.00$                     10.00$                 

82044 MICROALBUMIN, SEMIQUANT 12.00$                     12.00$                 

82120 VAGINAL FLUID CHEMICAL ANALYSIS FOR BACTERIA 6.00$                       6.00$                   

82270 FECAL OCCULT BLOOD TEST 25.00$                     25.00$                 

82272 FECAL OCCULT BLOOD SCREENING 5.00$                       5.00$                   

82962 BLOOD GLUCOSE MONITOR 25.00$                     25.00$                 

83036 GLYCATED HEMOGLOBIN TEST 15.00$                     15.00$                 

83655 LEAD LEVEL 15.00$                     15.00$                 

83986 BODY FLUID PH LEVEL 3.00$                       3.00$                   

85018 HEMOGLOBIN TESTING 5.00$                       5.00$                   

86580 TB TEST (TUBERSOL) 20.00$                     20.00$                 
Revised: 6/7/2021 Page 62 of 77



COMMUNITY HEALTH EDUCATION DIVISION
FEE SCHEDULE

Proposed - FY 21-22

Procedure Code Procedure Name
Approved 20/21 Proposed  21-22

87210 WET MOUNT FOR KOH PREPS 13.00$                     13.00$                 

87661 DETECTION TEST FOR TRICHOMONAS VAGINALIS 11.50$                     11.50$                 

87880 STREP GRP A SCREEN 25.00$                     25.00$                 

90471 ADMINISTRATION FEE - 1ST 20.00$                     20.00$                 

90472 ADMINISTRATION FEE - EACH ADD 20.00$                     20.00$                 

90473 ADMINISTRATION FEE-INTRANASAL/ORAL VAC 20.00$                     20.00$                 

90474 ADMINISTRATION OF NASAL OR ORAL VACCINE 20.00$                     20.00$                 

90620 MEN B PP MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90632 HEP A ADULT PP MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90633 HEP A PED PP MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90647 HIB VACCINE, PRP-OMP, IM MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90651 HPV9 PP MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90662 IIV3 HIGH DOSE 65YR+ PP 55.00$                     55.00$                 

90670 PREVNAR (PCV-13)  PP MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90672 LAIV4 PP 25.00$                     25.00$                 

90675 RABIES MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90686 IIV4 PF 6 MONTHS 25.00$                     25.00$                 

90688 IIV4 MDV 6 MONTH 25.00$                     25.00$                 

90698 DTAP+HIB+IPV PP MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90700 DTAP MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90707 MMR PP MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90713 IPV PP MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90714 Td PP MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90715 TDAP vaccine, 7+ years old MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90716 VARICELLA - VARIVAX MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90723 DTAP-HEP B-IPV VACCINE, MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90732 PPSV23 MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90734 MCV4 MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90736 ZOSTER (SHINGLES) VACCINE (HZV), LIVE, FOR SUBCUTANEOUS INJ MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90744 HEPB VACC PED/ADOL 3 DOS MKT + 10% MKT + 10%
Revised: 6/7/2021 Page 63 of 77



COMMUNITY HEALTH EDUCATION DIVISION
FEE SCHEDULE

Proposed - FY 21-22

Procedure Code Procedure Name
Approved 20/21 Proposed  21-22

90746 HEP B VACCINE, ADULT, IM MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90748 HEP B/HIB VACCINE, IM MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90750 ZOSTER (SHINGLES) VACCINE (HZV), RECOMBINANT, SUBCUTANEOUS MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90772 DEPO PROVERA INJECTION, 1 MG. 194.00$                  194.00$              

93000 EKG W/INTERPRET 50.00$                     50.00$                 

94010 SPIROMETRY WITHOUT BRONCHODILATION 65.00$                     65.00$                 

94060 SPIROMETRY WITH BRONCHODILATION 110.00$                  110.00$              

94640 AIRWAY INHALATION TREATMENT 40.00$                     40.00$                 

94664 NEBULIZER DEMO 30.00$                     30.00$                 

95000 COPIES OF MEDICAL RECORDS 0.25$                       0.25$                   

96154 ISS VISIT-DRUG EXP. 100.00$                  100.00$              

96372 THERAPEUTIC, PROPHYLACTIC INJECT 35.00$                     35.00$                 

97597 WOUND CARE 195.00$                  195.00$              

99071 PATIENT EDUCATION MATERIALS PROVIDED 25.00$                     25.00$                 

99172 VISION SCREEN 10.00$                     10.00$                 

99195 COURT ORDERED TESTING 170.00$                  170.00$              

99201 OFFICE VISIT, NEW 75.00$                     75.00$                 

99202 OFFICE VISIT, NEW 115.00$                  115.00$              

99203 OFFICE VISIT, NEW 160.00$                  160.00$              

99204 OFFICE VISIT, NEW 225.00$                  225.00$              

99205 OFFICE/OUTPATIENT VISIT, 250.00$                  250.00$              

99211 OFFICE VISIT, ESTABLISHED LEVEL 1 28.00$                     28.00$                 

99212 OFFICE VISIT, ESTABLISHED LEVEL 2 60.00$                     60.00$                 

99213 OFFICE VISIT, ESTABLISHED 3 105.00$                  105.00$              

99214 OFFICE VISIT, ESTABLISHED 4 150.00$                  150.00$              

99215 OFFICE VISIT, ESTABLISHED 5 200.00$                  200.00$              

99242 OFFICE VISIT, CONSULTATION LEVEL 2 135.00$                  135.00$              

99243 OFFICE VISIT, CONSULTATION LEVEL 3 185.00$                  185.00$              

99244 OFFICE VISIT, CONSULTATION LEVEL 4 275.00$                  275.00$              

99245 OFFICE VISIT, CONSULTATION LEVEL 5 335.00$                  335.00$              
Revised: 6/7/2021 Page 64 of 77



COMMUNITY HEALTH EDUCATION DIVISION
FEE SCHEDULE

Proposed - FY 21-22

Procedure Code Procedure Name
Approved 20/21 Proposed  21-22

99383 INITIAL EXAM 5-11 YRS 160.00$                  160.00$              

99384 INITIAL EXAM 12-17 YRS 190.00$                  190.00$              

99385 INITIAL EXAM 18-39 YRS 185.00$                  185.00$              

99386 PREV VISIT, NEW, AGE 40-64 YRS 215.00$                  215.00$              

99387 INITIAL EXAM 65+ YRS 225.00$                  225.00$              

99391 PREVENTATIVE VISIT, ESTABLISHED, INFANT 195.00$                  195.00$              

99392 PREVENTATIVE VISIT, ESTABLISHED, 1-4 YRS 205.00$                  205.00$              

99393 PREVENTATIVE VISIT, ESTABLISHED, 5-11  YRS 140.00$                  140.00$              

99394 PREVENTATIVE VISIT, ESTABLISHED 12-17 YRS 165.00$                  165.00$              

99395 PREVENTATIVE VISIT, ESTABLISHED, 18-39 YRS 170.00$                  170.00$              

99396 PREVENTATIVE VISIT, ESTABLISHED, 40-64 YRS 185.00$                  185.00$              

99397 PREVENTATIVE VISIT, ESTABLISHED 65+ YRS 195.00$                  195.00$              

99401 PREVENTIVE MEDICINE, INDIVIDUAL COUNSELING-15 MINUTES 55.00$                     55.00$                 

99402 PREVENTIVE MEDICINE, INDIVIDUAL COUNSELING-30 MINUTES 135.00$                  135.00$              

99403 PREVENTIVE MEDICINE, INDIVIDUAL COUNSELING-45 MINUTES 150.00$                  150.00$              

99404 PREVENTIVE MEDICINE, INDIVIDUAL COUNSELING-60 MINUTES 171.00$                  171.00$              

99406 TOBACCO COUNSELING, 3-10 min. 8.00$                       8.00$                   

99407 TOBACCO COUNSELING, 10+ min 16.00$                     16.00$                 

99420 HEALTH RISK ASSESSMENT 75.00$                     75.00$                 

90715 TDAP   MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90744 HEP B PED MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

90746 HEP B ADULT MKT + 10% MKT + 10%

99202 PARTIAL EXAM, NEW 85.00$                     85.00$                 

99211 NURSE ONLY VISIT 45.00$                     45.00$                 

99212 PARTIAL EXAM, ESTABLISHED 60.00$                     60.00$                 

99213 OFFICE VISIT, ESTABLISHED 80.00$                     80.00$                 

99385 BC/WH - INITIAL EXAM 18-39 160.00$                  160.00$              

99386 INITIAL EXAM 40-64 YRS 180.00$                  180.00$              

99395 ESTABLISHED EXAM 40-64 YRS 140.00$                  140.00$              

99396 ESTABLISHED EXAM 40-64 YRS 150.00$                  150.00$              
Revised: 6/7/2021 Page 65 of 77



COMMUNITY HEALTH EDUCATION DIVISION
FEE SCHEDULE

Proposed - FY 21-22

Procedure Code Procedure Name
Approved 20/21 Proposed  21-22

99402 HOME VISIT 100.00$                  100.00$              

A4267a CONDOMS - MALE 0.30$                       0.30$                   

A4269 FOAM 10.00$                     10.00$                 

D0190 NURSE -ORAL SCREENING 0 - 3 yrs 15.00$                     15.00$                 

D0191 HYGIENIST -ORAL ASSESSMENT 15.00$                     15.00$                 

D1206 TOPICAL FLUORIDE VARNISH 30.00$                     30.00$                 

G0008 ADMINISTRATION FEE - MEDICARE FLU 20.00$                     20.00$                 

G0009 ADMINISTRATION FEE - HEP B 20.00$                     20.00$                 

G0010 ADMINISTRATION FEE - MEDICARE PNEUMOCOCCAL 10.00$                     20.00$                 

G0091 PAP 70.00$                     70.00$                 

G0101 SCREEN, PELVIC/BREAST EXAM 80.00$                     80.00$                 

G0103 PROSTATE/PSA 50.00$                     50.00$                 

G0402 WELCOME TO MEDICARE 305.00$                  305.00$              

G0403 ELECTROCARDIOGRAM 225.00$                  225.00$              

G0436 TOBACCO COUNSELING, 3-10 min. 35.00$                     35.00$                 

G0437 TOBACCO COUNSELING, 10+ min 50.00$                     50.00$                 

G0438 ANNUAL WELLNESS 318.00$                  318.00$              

G0439 ANNUAL SUBSEQUENT 218.00$                  218.00$              

J0171 EPINEPHRINE 6.00$                       6.00$                   

J0696 CEFTRIAXONE/ROCEPHIN, per 250 mg 15.00$                     15.00$                 

J1030 METHYLPREDNISONE, 40 mg 7.00$                       7.00$                   

J1040 DEPO-MEDROL 20.89$                     20.89$                 

J1050 DEPO/MEDROXYPROGESTERONE 0.48$                       0.48$                   

J1100 INJ-DEXAMETHASONE SOD PH 1.50$                       1.50$                   

J1200 DIPHENYDRAMINE, Inj. (to 50 mg) 3.00$                       3.00$                   

J1885 TORADOL, 15 mg 24.00$                     24.00$                 

J1940 LASIX 6.10$                       6.10$                   

J1940 INJ FUROSEMIDE TO 20 MG 6.10$                       6.10$                   

J2001 LIDOCAINE HCL 2.00$                       2.00$                   

J2360 NORFLEX 140.00$                  140.00$              
Revised: 6/7/2021 Page 66 of 77



COMMUNITY HEALTH EDUCATION DIVISION
FEE SCHEDULE

Proposed - FY 21-22

Procedure Code Procedure Name
Approved 20/21 Proposed  21-22

J2405 ZOFRAN, INJ. 0.15$                       0.15$                   

J2550 INJ PROMETHAZINE HCL TO 50 MG 10.00$                     10.00$                 

J2920 INJ METHYLPREDNISOLONE SOLU-MEDROL, 40 MG 10.00$                     10.00$                 

J2930 SOLU-MEDROL, 125 mg 7.00$                       7.00$                   

J3301 KENALOG, per 10 mg 4.00$                       4.00$                   

J3420 B 12 (up to 1000 mg) 7.00$                       7.00$                   

J3490 NITROSTAT 0.30$                       0.30$                   

J7298a IUS-MIRENA/PROGESTERONE 670.00$                  670.00$              

J7300 IUD-COPPER (PARAGUARD) 485.00$                  485.00$              

J7303 NUVA RING 30.00$                     30.00$                 

J7307 ETONOGESTREL IMPLANT SYSTEM 850.00$                  850.00$              

J7620 ALBUTEROL/IPRATROPIUM BROMIDE 1.59$                       1.59$                   

J7644 IPRATROPIUM BROMIDE 1.25$                       1.25$                   

J8499 METRONIDAZOLE 14 count 20.00$                     20.00$                 

J8499a METRONIDAZOLE 4  count 10.00$                     10.00$                 

Q0091 THIN PREP PAP 15.00$                     15.00$                 

Q2038 Influenza, Ages 3+ 20.00$                     20.00$                 

S0020 MARCAINE HCL 52.48$                     52.48$                 

S0610 ANNUAL GYNECOLOGICAL EXAMINATION, NEW PATIENT 200.00$                  200.00$              

S0612 ANNUAL GYNECOLOGICAL EXAMINATION, ESTABLISHED PATIENT 150.00$                  150.00$              

S4993 BIRTH CONTROL PILLS 20.00$                     20.00$                 

S9443 LACTATION CLASS, HOME SESSION 55.00$                     55.00$                 

T1028 LEAD HOME VISIT 95.00$                     95.00$                 

V5008 HEARING SCREENING 10.00$                     10.00$                 

Revised: 6/7/2021 Page 67 of 77



Approved 20/21 Proposed 21/22

Sewage Program Fees
Vacant Land Evaluation 191.00 193.00
Permit with Previous Vacant Land Evaluation 222.00 224.00
Gravity Mound w/Previous Vacant Land Evaluation 308.00 311.00
Permit - New 415.00 419.00
Aerobic Treatment Unit w/Previous Vacant Land 356.00 360.00
Sand Filter w/Previous Vacant Land 356.00 360.00
Pressure Mound w/Previous Vacant Land 356.00 360.00
Repair Tank Only 253.00 256.00
Repair Drainfield 253.00 256.00
Reissuance of Alternative Permit 94.00 95.00
Permit Renewal Prior to Expiration 53.00 54.00
Revisit Vacant Land/Relocation 152.00 154.00
Re-inspection fee for septic systems 104.00 105.00

Non-Residential Sewage Fees
0 - 1,000 gpd - New 519.00 524.00
>1,000 gpd<10,000 gpd - New 676.00 683.00
>10,000 gpd<20,000 gpd - New 870.00 879.00
0 - 1,000 gpd - Repair 519.00 524.00
>1,000 gpd<10,000 gpd - Repair 676.00 683.00
>10,000 gpd<10,000 gpd - Repair 870.00 879.00

Septic Waste Hauler Program
New Evaluation - per 20 acres 233.00 235.00
Annual Site Inspection Fee 233.00 235.00
Truck Inspection Fee 89.00 90.00

Water Supply Program 
Private - New 250.00 253.00
Private - Repair 250.00 253.00
Type II - New 314.00 317.00
Type II - Repair 314.00 317.00
Type III - New 362.00 366.00
Type III - Repair 362.00 366.00

Sewage/Well Evaluations
Sewage Evaluation 198.00 200.00
Water Evaluation 211.00 213.00
Sewage Evaluation - Combined 142.00 143.00
Water Evaluation - Combined 188.00 190.00
Lead Water Sample 73.00 74.00
Existing Site Septic/Well Evaluation 118.00 119.00

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DIVISION
FEE SCHEDULE

Fiscal Year 21-22 Proposal 

Page 68 of 77



Approved 20/21 Proposed 21/22

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DIVISION
FEE SCHEDULE

Fiscal Year 21-22 Proposal 

D.H.S. Facility Inspection
Partial Inspection Request 209.00 211.00
Full Inspection Request 305.00 308.00
Plan Review - Full Facility 312.00 315.00

Campgrounds
Inspection Fee Annual Campgrounds 110.00 111.00

Public Swimming Pools
Inspection Fee - MMDHD (Per Pool) 110.00 111.00

Plats/Subdivisions
On-Site Sewage & Private Water System Application Fee 675.00 682.00
Per Lot Fee 41.00 41.00
Sanitary Sewer & Private Water System Application Fee 544.00 549.00
Per Lot Fee 24.00 24.00
On-Site Sewage & Public Water System Application Fee 544.00 549.00
Per Lot Fee 41.00 41.00

Food Services Program
Fixed Foods:  Type I 201.00 201.00
Fixed Foods:  Type II 210.00 210.00
Fixed Foods:  Type III 577.00 577.00
Fixed Foods:  Type IV 604.00 604.00
Fixed Foods:  Type V 635.00 635.00
Mobile Food 375.00 375.00
Site Consultation Fee 201.00 201.00
Late License Fee   0-30 days 138.00 138.00
Late License Fee 31-60 days 275.00 275.00
Late License Fee 61-90 days 413.00 413.00
Late License Fee 91 & over days 551.00 551.00
Enforcement Increased Inspection Frequency 239.00 239.00
Re-Inspection After Hearing 239.00 239.00
Enforcement Informal Hearing Fee 340.00 340.00
Enforcement Formal Hearing Fee 567.00 567.00
Temporary Food - Profit 82.00 82.00
Temporary Food - Non-Profit 82.00 82.00
Temporary Food - Late License Fee 36.00 36.00
Food Establishment - Full Review/Major Remodel 624.00 624.00
Food Establishment - Partial Review/Minor Remodel 309.00 309.00
Advanced Food Training 129.00 129.00
Food Handler Class 20.00 20.00
Re-Certification Class 129.00 129.00

Page 69 of 77



Approved 20/21 Proposed 21/22

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DIVISION
FEE SCHEDULE

Fiscal Year 21-22 Proposal 

Body Art
Routine Inspection 288.00 291.00
Follow-up Inspection 172.00 174.00
Plan Review 307.00 310.00
BBP Certification 26.00 26.00
Temporary Body Art License 228.00 230.00

Other
Septic Installers Registration 2 Years 98.00 98.00
Septic Installers Registration - Test/Late Fees 67.00 67.00
Appeal to Board of Health 190.00 190.00
Disinterment/Reinterment 26.00 26.00
Radon Test Kit - Alpha 26.00 26.00
Mercury Spill Kit 20.00 20.00
AOI Inspection Fee 113.00 114.00
Type II Water Sampling 63.00 64.00

E.H. Service Late Fee - after 60 days; applied each month 
thereafter 53.00 54.00
E.H. Enforcement Fee 208.00 210.00
Water Sample - Courier Service 5.00 5.00
F.O.I.A - ($ based on time and supplies used)

*Campgrounds and pool licensing fees are determined and collected by the State of Michigan not included above.
**Food licensing has a surcharge determined by the State of Michigan, collected by MMDHD which is not included above.
***STFU License and Inspection Fees are determined by the State of Michigan collected by MMDHD.  A portion of the set fee is sent to the state.

Page 70 of 77



Page 1 of 4 
 

 

Report to the Boards of Health  
Jennifer Morse, MD, MPH, FAAFP, Medical Director 

 
Mid-Michigan District Health Department, Wednesday, June 23, 2021 

Central Michigan District Health Department, Wednesday, June 23, 2021 
District Health Department 10, Friday, June 25, 2021 

 

COVID-19: What Comes Next 
 

In the past six months, amazing strides have been made in vaccination and control of COVID-19 in the United 
States. We have seen rates of infection decrease while rates of vaccination have increased. There is a sense that 
the pandemic is over, and life is returning to “normal”. Unfortunately, there is still great uncertainty what the 
coming months and years hold for us and COVID-19. 
 

 
 
A survey of more than 100 immunologists, infectious-disease researchers 
and virologists working on COVID-19 found that almost 90% of them believe 
COVID-19 will become endemic, which means it will continue to circulate for 
years to come. It is expected that most adults will eventually have immunity 
from vaccination or surviving illness, which will help keep seasonal illness 
and deaths down, and limit the need for lockdowns, social distancing, 
masking, and other measures. With time, it will become an illness that most 
first encounter in childhood, when it causes mild infection, much like the 
four strains of coronaviruses that cause the common cold. This childhood 
illness will provide some but not complete immunity into adulthood, which 
should keep adults from getting as sick if they get reinfected later in life. 
Getting to this point could take years, depending on how quickly we develop 
immunity.  
 
This scenario is like that of the 1918 influenza pandemic, which killed 50 
million people. After that terrible pandemic, that strain of influenza has 
continued to change and circulate; nearly every case of influenza A that has 
occurred since that year has been caused by a direct ancestor to the virus 
that caused that pandemic.  
 
Many states have or are considering “reopening” or discontinuing their 
COVID-19 prevention restrictions. Some are reopening based on vaccination levels, rates of positive COVID-19 
tests, or rates of COVID-19 cases or hospitalizations. Some are reopening gradually, as vaccination rates increase. 

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

0

200

400

600

800

2
2

-F
eb

1
-M

ar

8
-M

ar

1
5

-M
ar

2
2

-M
ar

2
9

-M
ar

5
-A

p
r

1
2

-A
p

r

1
9

-A
p

r

2
6

-A
p

r

3
-M

ay

1
0

-M
ay

1
7

-M
ay

2
4

-M
ay

3
1

-M
ay

7
-J

u
n

Michigan COVID-19 Case Rate vs. Vaccinations

Daily cases per million At least one dose of vaccine

 
Endemic: a disease or the level of a disease which is 
present in a population or area all the time, not as an 
exception to the rule. 
 
Epidemic: the often-sudden rise in the number of 
cases of a particular disease above the normal 
endemic level. There is no specific number of cases, 
duration of disease, or geographical area affected for 
something to be deemed an epidemic. Seasonal 
influenza in people is a seasonal epidemic. 
 
Pandemic: the worldwide spread of a new disease or 
a strain of an existing disease to which most of the 
population have no immunity. 
 
Source: 
https://www.technologynetworks.com/immunology/articles/epidemic-
vs-pandemic-323471  

Page 71 of 77

https://www.technologynetworks.com/immunology/articles/epidemic-vs-pandemic-323471
https://www.technologynetworks.com/immunology/articles/epidemic-vs-pandemic-323471


Page 2 of 4 
 

Others have no clear target, aiming only for a specific date, and have not defined what might cause measures to 
be put back in place. Reopening too quickly, when too little of the community is vaccinated, could undo any gains 
they have made in COVID-19 control. New variants of the SARS-CoV-2 virus could also worsen reopening efforts. 
The worst-case scenario for reopening was demonstrated in Brazil in March, when as they started to relax 
restrictions, a new variant began circulating, vaccination was less effective against this variant, and their 
vaccination program was slow to get moving.  
 
In most areas of the United States, mask use has been decreasing since mid-February. There continues to be a 
struggle to get people, especially those that are not vaccinated, to wear masks when the risk is highest. There is 
clear evidence that masks protect both the person wearing the mask and those around them from COVID-19 
infection and death. 
 
There have been several studies done using mathematic modeling that have shown that relaxing non-
pharmaceutical interventions (NPI) that help prevent COVID-19 before enough of the population is immune will 
lead to large increases in cases, hospitalizations, and deaths. Nearly all these deaths would occur in the portion of 
the United States that is not vaccinated. These increases and outbreaks may force closures and lockdowns again, 
especially in areas with low vaccination rates. Some states and localities have dramatically different vaccination 
rates and those with lower rates will be disproportionately affected by surges, outbreaks, hospitalizations, deaths, 
and further shutdowns. 
  

 
https://www.usatoday.com/storytelling/coronavirus-reopening-america-map/#restrictions 

 
There is much discussion about the number of people that need to get vaccinated to stop the spread of COVID-19, 
known at herd immunity. Many see this number or percentage as a goal or ending point. Experts recommend the 
focus on this number stop. The amount of the population that needs to be immune to have herd immunity is 
different for different diseases, so we will not know what that level is for COVID-19 until we get there. New 
variants, dropping levels of immunity with time, colder weather that causes us to spend more time together 
indoors, and other factors can all cause changes in the amount of immunity a community need to keep COVID-19 
under control. There can also be areas with high average vaccination rates that have pockets of low rates and at 
risk for outbreaks that reintroduce COVID-19 to the entire area. Some experts fear that we have a low likelihood 
of ever reaching herd immunity in the US because about 25% of those eligible to get vaccinated say they will 
never get vaccinated and not all people are eligible for vaccination (primarily children). Other issues they site are 

Page 72 of 77

https://www.usatoday.com/storytelling/coronavirus-reopening-america-map/#restrictions


Page 3 of 4 
 

the decreased effectiveness of current vaccines 
against some variants, the potential for new variants, 
and the lack of 100% effectiveness of vaccination.  
Currently, we have been most focused on getting our 
own communities vaccinated. However, no 
community or country can be safe until all countries 
are immune to COVID-19. Globally, only 12% of the 
population has received at least one dose of COVID-
19 vaccine. SARS-CoV-2 will continue to spread and 
mutate, creating new variants until a high global 
vaccination rate is reached. COVID-19 will be easily 
re-introduced from international travel as travel is 
reinstated. Some experts expect it to take a few 
years to get COVID-19 under control worldwide.  
 
An assessment of case investigation and contact 
tracing in 14 different health departments in the US 
between June and October 2020 found that no close contacts were reported for two-thirds of people with 
confirmed COVID-19 infections. This was because the cases were either not reached for an interview or they did 
not name any close contacts. This suggests that contact tracing was not sufficient to reduce the spread of COVID-
19 during this time. Of the contacts that were identified and tested, they had a higher chance of testing positive 
for COVID-19 than the general population, supporting the importance of contact tracing.  
 
As our cases of COVID-19 decrease, finding cases and close contacts of cases becomes more important. For many 
months, there were more cases and close contacts than public health could handle. Case investigation and 
contact tracing focused on those of highest risk to spreading COVID-19 to others, such as school aged children, 
healthcare workers, and residents of congregate settings and nursing homes. As there are fewer and fewer cases, 
we should do more surveillance testing, quickly isolate anyone that is positive, thoroughly trace all contacts, and 
quarantine anyone that could be contagious. By doing this, the spread of COVID-19 can quickly be stopped. 
Adding in backwards contact tracing, which is looking at contacts 2 to 6 days before someone developed 
symptoms to find the person that may have infected them, can further improve control of COVID-19.  
 
Recommendations: 

1. There is no known immunity level when COVID-19 will be controlled. Focus on getting as many people 
vaccinated as quickly as possible. 

2. Vaccination efforts must be worldwide to have lasting effects on COVID-19. 
3. Non-pharmaceutical interventions against COVID-19 should be stopped gradually, as vaccination rates 

increase, and should be reinitiated if needed. 
4. Test-trace-isolate work should continue even when cases of COVID-19 are low. 

 
 
Sources 
 

• Phillips, Nicky. "The coronavirus is here to stay-here’s what that means." Nature 590.7846 (2021): 382-
384. https://www.nature.com/articles/d41586-021-00396-2  

• Lima, Pedro Nascimento de, Raffaele Vardavas, Lawrence Baker, Jeanne S. Ringel, Robert J. Lempert, 
Carolyn M. Rutter, and Jonathan Ozik, Reopening Under Uncertainty: Stress-Testing California's COVID-19 
Exit Strategy. Santa Monica, CA: RAND Corporation, 2021. 
https://www.rand.org/pubs/perspectives/PEA1080-1.html  

Page 73 of 77

https://www.nature.com/articles/d41586-021-00396-2
https://www.rand.org/pubs/perspectives/PEA1080-1.html


Page 4 of 4 
 

• Brumfiel, G. 2021. It's Time For America's Fixation On Herd Immunity To End, Scientists Say. NPR. 
https://www.npr.org/sections/health-shots/2021/05/18/997461471/its-time-for-americas-fixation-with-
herd-immunity-to-end-scientists-say  

• Peeples, L. What the science says about lifting mask mandates. 2021. Nature  
https://www.nature.com/articles/d41586-021-01394-0 

• Fry, E., Rapp, N., (2021). 12% of the world’s population has received a COVID vaccine. See how your 
country is doing. Fortune. https://fortune.com/2021/06/09/covid-vaccine-rates-world-map-vaccination-
by-country/  

• Moore, Sam & Hill, Edward & Tildesley, Michael & Dyson, Louise & Keeling, Matt. (2021). Vaccination and 
non-pharmaceutical interventions for COVID-19: a mathematical modelling study. The Lancet Infectious 
Diseases. 21. 10.1016/S1473-3099(21)00143-2. 
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/350200301_Vaccination_and_non-
pharmaceutical_interventions_for_COVID-19_a_mathematical_modelling_study 

• Borchering, Rebecca K., et al. "Modeling of future COVID-19 cases, hospitalizations, and deaths, by 
vaccination rates and nonpharmaceutical intervention scenarios—United States, April–September 2021." 
Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report 70.19 (2021): 719. 
https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/70/wr/mm7019e3.htm?s_cid=mm7019e3_w  

• Murray, Christopher JL, and Peter Piot. "The potential future of the COVID-19 pandemic: will SARS-CoV-2 
become a recurrent seasonal infection?." Jama 325.13 (2021): 1249-1250. 
https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jama/fullarticle/2777343  

• Lawrence Baker, Pedro Nascimento de Lima, Jeanne S. Ringel, Raffaele Vardavas.  Will the United States 
Declare Freedom from COVID-19 Too Soon? The RAND Blog https://www.rand.org/blog/2021/05/will-the-
united-states-declare-freedom-from-covid-19.html  

• Skegg, David, et al. "Future scenarios for the COVID-19 pandemic." The Lancet 397.10276 (2021): 777-778. 
https://doi.org/10.1016/S0140-6736(21)00424-4  

• Microbe, The Lancet. "COVID-19 vaccines: the pandemic will not end overnight." The Lancet. Microbe 2.1 
(2021): https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC7831782/  

• Lash, R. Ryan, et al. "COVID-19 Case Investigation and Contact Tracing in the US, 2020." JAMA Network 
Open 4.6 (2021): e2115850-e2115850. 
https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jamanetworkopen/fullarticle/2780568  

• Bradshaw, William J., et al. "Bidirectional contact tracing could dramatically improve COVID-19 control." 
Nature communications 12.1 (2021): 1-9. https://www.nature.com/articles/s41467-020-20325-7  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 74 of 77

https://www.npr.org/sections/health-shots/2021/05/18/997461471/its-time-for-americas-fixation-with-herd-immunity-to-end-scientists-say
https://www.npr.org/sections/health-shots/2021/05/18/997461471/its-time-for-americas-fixation-with-herd-immunity-to-end-scientists-say
https://www.nature.com/articles/d41586-021-01394-0
https://fortune.com/2021/06/09/covid-vaccine-rates-world-map-vaccination-by-country/
https://fortune.com/2021/06/09/covid-vaccine-rates-world-map-vaccination-by-country/
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/350200301_Vaccination_and_non-pharmaceutical_interventions_for_COVID-19_a_mathematical_modelling_study
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/350200301_Vaccination_and_non-pharmaceutical_interventions_for_COVID-19_a_mathematical_modelling_study
https://www.cdc.gov/mmwr/volumes/70/wr/mm7019e3.htm?s_cid=mm7019e3_w
https://jamanetwork.com/journals/jama/fullarticle/2777343
https://www.rand.org/blog/2021/05/will-the-united-states-declare-freedom-from-covid-19.html
https://www.rand.org/blog/2021/05/will-the-united-states-declare-freedom-from-covid-19.html
https://doi.org/10.1016/S0140-6736(21)00424-4
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC7831782/
https://www.nature.com/articles/s41467-020-20325-7


Page 1 of 2 

 

MID-MICHIGAN DISTRICT  
BOARD OF HEALTH 

ACTION ITEMS 

MAY 2021 
 

 
• The Board of Health (BOH) scheduled the online Special Finance Committee Meeting for June 10, 2021, at 8:30 

a.m. to develop the FY 21/22 Budget. 
 
 

• The BOH approved the Contract Extension Agreement with My Community Dental Centers, Inc. (MCDC) and 
authorized B. DeLong, Chairperson to sign it. 
 
 

• The BOH approved the Medical Director’s healthy living recommendations for June: 

1. Following a balanced diet is the best way to get the nutrients you need for a healthy immune system. 
For more information see https://www.hsph.harvard.edu/nutritionsource/healthy-eating-plate/  

 

 

 

 

 

2. If you are concerned you are not getting a well-balanced diet, consider taking a multivitamin once a 
day. High doses of any vitamin or mineral have not been consistently found to be very helpful. Verified 
multivitamins can be found here https://www.quality-supplements.org/verified-products/verified-
products-listings#list2; anyone other than a pregnant or menstruating woman should not take a vitamin 
with extra iron. 

3. If you choose to take vitamins or supplements, consult with your doctor or pharmacist. Look for those 
verified by the United States Pharmacopeial Convention (USP), an independent, scientific nonprofit 
organization (see image of seal below).  This verification indicates the product contains the ingredients 
listed on the label, in the declared potency and amount, does not contain harmful levels of specified 
contaminants, will break down and release into the body within specified amount of time, and has been 
made using safe, sanitary, and well-controlled manufacturing practices according to FDA and USP 
guidelines. For more information see https://www.quality-supplements.org/. 

 

 

 

 

Page 75 of 77

https://www.quality-supplements.org/verified-products/verified-products-listings#list2
https://www.quality-supplements.org/verified-products/verified-products-listings#list2
https://www.quality-supplements.org/


Page 2 of 2 

 

 
 

• After discussion by the BOH, a recommendation was made that the County Boards of Commissioners use county 
American Rescue Plan funding to reimburse Mid-Michigan District Health Department (MMDHD) for the loss of 
revenue for their FY 20/21 licensing fees, if Senate Bills 353 and 354 pass in the House and Senate and to 
authorize M. Cheatham to send the amounts of lost revenue for MMDHD to the County Boards of 
Commissioners. 

 
 

• With the pending retirement of Marcus Cheatham, Health Officer, the BOH approved the proposed hiring 
committee and timeline to recruit a new health officer. 

 

Page 76 of 77



 

 

STAFFING REPORT – JUNE 2021 
 

 AS  

STATUS POSITION BRANCH  
OFFICE 

VACANCY FT IT Coordinator, Clinton Branch Office, effective October 1, 2020  Clinton 

VACANCY FT Health Officer, Main Office, effective date July 5, 2021 Main Office 

   

   
 CHED  

STATUS POSITION BRANCH  
OFFICE 

NEW HIRE Erin Stratton, FT P.H. Representative, Montcalm Branch Office, effective  
June 7, 2021 

Montcalm 

SEPARATION OF 
EMPLOYMENT 

Karley McDonald, PT (0.5 FTE) P.H. Nurse II (COVID), Gratiot Branch Office, 
effective June 17, 2021 

Gratiot 

VACANCY ON HOLD PT (0.5 FTE) P.H. Nurse I/II (COVID), Gratiot Branch Office, effective  
June 18, 2021 through September 30, 2021 

Gratiot 

   

 
 EH  

STATUS POSITION BRANCH  
OFFICE 

NEW HIRE Joseph Kalinski, paid Intern, Gratiot Branch Office effective May 25, 2021, for 
approximately 12 weeks for the Beach Monitoring Grant 

Gratiot 

   

 
 

Page 77 of 77


	A. 2021-6-23 BOH Agenda
	A. BOH Proposed Actions Summary
	B.1.a. 2021-5-10 MALPH BOD Minutes
	B.1.b. 2021-5-26 BOH Minutes
	B.1.c. 2021-6-10 BOH Special Finance Cte Minutes
	B.1.d. 2021-6-16 BOH Personnel Cte Minutes
	E.1.a. BOH EV Summary
	E.1.a. EV 1952-BOH AP Payment Register (2021-5-21)
	E.1.a. EV 1953 BOH AP Payment Register (2021-6-4)
	E.1.b. Rev-Exp Report-May
	E.1.b. Balance Sheet Comparative 5-31-21
	E.1.c. FY 21-22 Budget Narrative
	E.1.c. FY 21-22 Budget
	21-22

	E.1.d.1) FY 21-22 CHED Fees
	ALL

	E.1.d.2) FY 21-22 EH Fees
	21-22 1% EXC FOOD

	F. MD Report-June Future of Covid
	K.1. Action Items-May
	K.2. Staffing Report-June



